
 County Council Agenda 
 County Council of Beaufort County 
Monday, June 28, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

This meeting will be held both in person at County Council Chambers, 

100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, and virtually through Zoom. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION - Council Member Howard  

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, 
POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

6. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

7. PROCLAMATION HONORING CLARENCE "C.J." CUMMINGS 

8. PROCLAMATION HONORING MRS. CHMELIK FOR HER SERVICE TO 
BEAUFORT COUNTY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

9. PRESENTATION BY PORT ROYAL SOUND FOUNDATION (DEAN MOSS) 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

10. CITIZEN COMMENTS- CITIZENS MAY JOIN VIA ZOOM USING THE LINK 
AND MEETING INFORMATION BELOW: 

MEETING LINK: 

Meeting number (access code): 161 4154 7770 

Password: BC123 

(ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes (a total 
of 15 minutes) and will address Council in a respectful manner appropriate 
to the decorum of the meetings, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, 
or obscene language) 
 

LIAISON AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 

11. LIAISON AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

12. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA (PAGE 3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

County Council Meeting 
 

Chairman 

Joseph F. Passiment, JR. 
 

Vice Chairman 

D. Paul Sommerville  

 

Council Members 

Logan Cunningham  

Gerald Dawson  

Brian E. Flewelling  

York Glover, SR.  

Chris Hervochon 

Alice G. Howard  

Mark Lawson 

Lawrence P. McElynn 

Stu Rodman 

 

County Administrator 

Eric Greenway 

 

Clerk to Council 

Sarah W. Brock 

 

Administration Building 

Robert Smalls Complex 

100 Ribaut Road 

 

Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 

Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

1

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/16141547770?pwd=MmF2NXZpVjRrbzdsTWFXL2M4WDZ0dz09
http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

13. RESOLUTION DESIGNATING TWO NEW PUBLIC WORKS ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS 

 
14. THIRD  READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

("COUNCIL") ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING A SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE ("IMPACT FEE") TO BE 
IMPOSED ON ALL NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE AREA 
PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2021/____; TO ENSURE THAT SCHOOL FACILITY SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS WILL 
BE AVAILABLE AND ADEQUATE TO ACCOMMODATE THE NEED EXPECTED TO BE GENERATED FROM THE 
SCHOOL CHILDREN IN NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE 
AREA BASED ON THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARDS AND CAPITAL IMPROVMENTS PLAN, 
AND TO ASSIGN THE COSTS OF SUCH PUBLIC SCHOOL FACILITIES ON A PROPROTIONATE SHARE BASIS TO NEW 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE SERVICE AREA; AND ESTABLISHMENT OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENTS BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND THE BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND 
INDIVIDUAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND THE TOWNS OF 
BLUFFTON AND HILTON ISLAND AND THE CITY OF HARDEEVILLE 
Vote at First Reading: August 10, 2020 – 5:4 
Public Hearing: September 14, 2020, (Council voted without objection to postpone the item until October 12, 
2020  
Second Reading:  October 12, 2020, Agenda was amended to remove the item.  
Vote at Second Reading: May 24, 2021 – 9:2 
 

15. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO CALL FOR A REFERENDUM TO ALLOW THE 
QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO VOTE TO RETAIN THE COUNCIL-
ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT OR CHANGE TO THE COUNCIL-MANAGER FORM OF GOVERNMENT 
Vote at First Reading: April 12, 2021 - 8:3 
Public Hearing:  April 26, 2021 
Vote at Second Reading: April 26, 2021 - 7:4 
 

16. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A QUITCLAIM 
DEED AND WAIVER OF REVERTER FOR REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1508 OLD SHELL ROAD WITH TMS NO. 
R100 011 000 105A 0000  
Vote at First Reading: May 24, 2021 - 11:0 
Vote at Second Reading: June 14, 2021 - 11:0 
 

17. SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 5.23 ACRES 
(R100 027 000 042B 0000) AT 335 JOE FRAZIER RD FROM T2 RURAL TO T2 RURAL CENTER 
Vote at First Reading: June 14, 2021 - 8:3 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 

18. CITIZEN COMMENTS - CITIZENS MAY JOIN VIA ZOOM USING THE LINK AND MEETING INFORMATION BELOW: 
MEETING LINK: 
Meeting number (access code): 161 4154 7770 
Password: BC123 
(ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their comments 
to no longer than three (3) minutes (a total of 15 minutes) and will address Council in a respectful manner 
appropriate to the decorum of the meetings, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or obscene 
language) 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
  

2

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/16141547770?pwd=MmF2NXZpVjRrbzdsTWFXL2M4WDZ0dz09


County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 

Items Originating from the Finance Committee 
1. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR THE FY2021 BEAUFORT COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

Vote at First Reading: May 24, 2021 - 11:0 
Vote at Second Reading: June 14, 2021 - 11:0 
Public Hearing:  June 14, 2021 
 

2. FINANCE COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION FOR FY22 CONTRACT RENEWAL APPROVALS OVER $100,000 
FROM VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS TO COUNTY COUNCIL 
A. SHI - MICROSOFT 365 RENEWAL - $471,148.03 
B. MANATRON (AUMENTUM) - PROPERTY ASSESSMENT TAX SOFTWARE - $241,922.72 
C. TYLER TECHNOLOGIES - ANNUAL SUPPORT LICENSE MUNIS - $233,365.93 
D. TYLER TECHNOLOGIES (ENERGOV) - $174,535.28 
E. NWN (CISCO SMARTNET) - PHONE SYSTEM GEAR NETWORK - $172,820 
F. THINKGUARD - OFFSITE DISASTER RECOVERY - $121,543 

Items Originating from the Public Facilities Committee 

3. RESOLUTION REVISING RESOLUTION 2020/26 REFLECTING THE APPROPRIATE AMOUNT OF CDBG AND LOCAL 

FUNDING CONTAINING THE REQUIRED COST SAVINGS LANGUAGE FOR THE DETOUR ROAD SIDEWALK 

EXTENSION PROJECT 

4. A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 

IMPLEMENTATION OF 2018 ONE CENT SALES TAX REFERENDUM PROJECTS APPROVED BY VOTERS 

NOVEMBER 6, 2018 

 

5. PUBLIC FACILITIES COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION FOR FY22 CONTRACT RENEWAL APPROVALS OVER 
$100,000 FROM VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS TO COUNTY COUNCIL 
A. WASTE MANAGEMENT HICKORY HILL LANDFILL - SOLID WASTE - $3,000,000 
B. REPUBLIC WASTE SERVICES - SOLID WASTE HAULING - $2,060,000 
C. OAKWOOD LANDFILL WASTE MANAGEMENT RIDGELAND - DISPOSAL OF CLASS II - $377,000 
D. SOUTH COAST RESOURCES INC - YARD WASTE RECYCLING - $248,000 
E. ECOFLO - HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE - $183,700 
F. DOLPHIN SHARED MANAGEMENT - DAUFUSKIE TRANSFER SOLID WASTE - $145,000 
G. POWERHOUSE - ELECTRONIC WASTE - $110,000 
H. C2G - WASTE TIRE HAULING - $108,000 
I. A&B CLEANING SERVICES INC. - CLEANING FOR COUNTY FACILITIES - $630,000 
J. TETRA TECH INC - STORM DEBRIS REMOVAL ETC. - ONLY WILL COST IF UTILIZED 
 

6. HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) – AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIRE FIGHTING CLASS 4 TRUCK – OSHKOSH 
AIRPORT PRODUCTS  (FISCAL IMPACT: OSHKOSH AIRPORT PRODUCTS BID - $653,626.00 FAA 100% GRANT-
REIMBURSABLE) 

7. HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) – CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. FOUR – QUALITY ENTERPRISES USA, 
INC. – RUNWAY 3 EXTENSION  (FISCAL IMPACT:) INCREASE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $264,341,38  (95% IS 
GRANT-REIMBURSABLE) 

8. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD– NON-COMPETITIVE CONTRACT WITH UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

BEAUFORT (USCB) WATER QUALITY LAB ($170,000.00) 

3



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

9. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB #061421– US-278 FLYOVER DRAINAGE EROSION IMPROVEMENTS 
($162,283.00) 

10. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB #051321 – BREWER MEMORIAL STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS 

($371,212.71) 

11. LAND ACQUISITION – FACTORY CREEK M2 PROJECT – PARCEL #R200 015 000 0559 0000 ($1.00) 

12. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB #052721 S. O. ADMINISTRATION BUILDING HVAC REPLACEMENT AT 
1501 BAY STREET ($983,059.00)  

 
 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 

4



 County Council Meeting Minutes 
 County Council of Beaufort County 
Monday, April 12, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

This meeting was held both in person at County Council Chambers, 

and also virtually through Zoom.  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM 
 
PRESENT 
Chairman Joseph Passiment 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Vice-Chairman Paul Sommerville 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
Council Member Brian Flewelling led the Pledge of Allegiance and gave the 
invocation.  
 
3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, 
POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

Chairman Passiment stated public notice of this meeting had been published, 
posted, and distributed in compliance with the SC FOIA Act 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Amend:   It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded 
by Council Member York Glover to remove item number 18; second reading of 
an Ordinance approving the intergovernmental agreements between Beaufort 
County, Port Royal, and the City of Beaufort and Amending prior Ordinances 
regarding the Multi-County Industrial Parks for Project Burger, Garden, Glass, 
and Stone and add to this item to the April 26th County Council Meeting. 
Motion to amend was approved without objection. 

Main Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by 
Council Member Alice Howard to approve the agenda as amended.  Motion 
approved without objection.   

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council 
Member Lawson to approve the munites of January 25, 2021.  Motion 
approved without objection. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

County Council Meeting 
 

Chairman 

Joseph F. Passiment, JR. 
 

Vice Chairman 

D. Paul Sommerville  

 

Council Members 

Logan Cunningham  

Gerald Dawson  

Brian E. Flewelling  

York Glover, SR.  

Chris Hervochon 

Alice G. Howard  

Mark Lawson 

Lawrence P. McElynn 

Stu Rodman 

 

Interim County Administrator 

Eric Greenway 

 

Clerk to Council 

Sarah W. Brock 

 

Administration Building 

Robert Smalls Complex 

100 Ribaut Road 

 

Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 

Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

5

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

6. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
To see Interim County Administrator, Eric Greenway's report please click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

 
7. PROCLAMATION PRESENTED TO HOPEFUL HORIZONS FOR SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH 

Council Member Larry McElynn read and presented a proclamation to Hopeful Horizons. 

8. ALCOHOL AWARENESS MONTH  
Council Member Larry McElynn read and presented a proclamation to The Beaufort County Alcohol and Drug 
Abuse Division. 
 

9. CITIZENS COMMENTS  

Eric Lawson spoke against wearing a mask. 

City of Beaufort Mayor Stephen Murray spoke in support of the Local Option Sales Tax. 

Bluffton Mayor Lisa Sulka spoke in support of the Local Option Sales Tax. 

Greg John spoke in support of rezoning his property on May River road. 

Mike Thompson spoke in support of the noise ordinance and enforcing it. 

Anne Marie spoke against the mask ordinance. 

 
EXTEND PAST 8 O’CLOCK HOUR 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Hervochon, Seconded by Council Member Cunningham to extend 
past 8:00 pm.  

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Council Member Stu Rodman, Seconded by Council Member Alice Howard 
to amend the motion to include extending past 8:00 pm but not past 9:00 pm.  

The Vote -  Voting Yea: Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Flewelling, 
Council Member Glover, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Sommerville, 
Council Member Passiment. Voting Nay: Council Member Cunningham, Council Member Dawson, Council 
Member Hervochon. Motion passed 8:3. 

Main Motion:  Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Hervochon, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council 
Member McElynn, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member Cunningham.  Voting Nay: Council Member 
Dawson. Motion passed 10:1.   

 

CONTINUATION OF CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Mr. and Mrs. Decker spoke for the rezoning of the property on May River Road. 

Blane McClure spoke in support of the rezoning of the property on May River Road. 

Leah McCarthy spoke against renewing the mask ordinance.  

Don Daville spoke against the mask mandate. 

Shannon Folcroft spoke against the mask mandate. 

Katie Vernon spoke against the mask mandate. 

Molly Sandman spoke against the mask mandate. 

Melissa Tullino spoke against the mask mandate. 

6

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Jennifer Yeager spoke against the mask mandate. 

Bonnie Miller spoke against the mask mandate. 

Cherry Norris spoke against the mask mandate. 

 

10. LIAISON AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Council Member McElynn stated the following items were coming forward from the Community Services and 
Public Safety Committee for consideration for approval on the consent agenda: 

 A resolution accepting the donation of playground equipment from the Daufuskie Island 

Council and authorizing the County Administrator to execute documentation associated with the 
acceptance of the donation. 

 Resolution to commission an animal service officer. 

Council Member Lawson stated the following items were coming forward from the Finance Committee for 
consideration for approval on the consent agenda: 

 Third reading of an ordinance approving the 2021 awards of local Accommodations and Hospitality 

 Second reading of an ordinance to use $5 million in fund balance to defease bonds. 

Council Member Howard stated the following items were coming forward from the Natural Resources 
Committee for consideration for approval on the consent agenda: 

 Contract to award itb031021 for purchase of timber to s. A. Allen timber company 

 A resolution to authorize the interim county administrator to execute a joint ownership And operating 
agreement between Beaufort county and the town of Hilton Head Island for The property known as ford 
shell ring preserve 

 A resolution to authorize the Interim County Administrator to execute a lease agreement between Beaufort 
County, the Town of Hilton Head Island and historic Mitchelville Freedom park for the property known as 
the beach city road parcels. 

Council Member Sommerville stated the following items were coming forward from the Executive Committee 
for consideration for approval on the consent agenda: 

 A resolution to set forth a uniform policy for processing, responding to, and tracking requests for public 
records in compliance with the FOIA act SC Code of Laws 30-4-10 et seq.  

 A resolution to authorize the Interim County Administrator to accept FAA grants. 

 A resolution authorizing the settlement of claims related to the care environmental waste disposal site. 
 

11. CONSENT AGENDA  
Council Member Flewelling requested item number 8, A resolution to set forth a uniform policy for processing, 

responding to, and tracking requests for public records in compliance with the FOIA act SC Code of Laws 30-4-

10 et seq. be removed from the consent agenda.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council Member Dawson to approve the 
consent agenda minus item number 8.  Motion approved without objection. 

 

12. AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE STATE OF EMERGENCY 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve an 
emergency ordinance extending the state of emergency.  

Discussion:  To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn, Council 
Member Dawson, Council Member Cunningham.  Voting Nay: Council Member Hervochon, Council Member 

7

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Flewelling.  Motion passed 8:3. 
 

13. AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE REQUIRING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS UNDER CERTAIN 
CIRCUMSTANCES 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member McElynn, Seconded by Council Member Dawson to approve an 
emergency ordinance requiring face coverings in certain circumstances. 

Discussion:  To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Dawson. Voting Nay: 
Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Lawson, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member 
Cunningham. The motion was defeated 7:4.  (8 yes votes were needed) 

 

14. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO MAKE PERMANENT THE PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED EMERGENCY 
RESOLUTION ALLOWING FOR ELECTRONIC OR HYBRID MEETINGS, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member McElynn, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve first 
reading of an ordinance to make permanent the previously adopted resolution allowing for electronic 
meetings. 

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Council Member Cunningham, seconded by Council Rodman to remove 
County Council meetings from being able to attend in person. 

Discussion:  To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn.  Voting 
Nay: Council Member Rodman, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member 
Cunningham.  Motion to amend was defeated 4:7.  

Back to Main Motion:  The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council 
Member Glover, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council 
Member McElynn, Council Member Dawson.  Voting Nay: Council Member Hervochon, Council Member 
Flewelling, Council Member Cunningham.  Motion passed 8:3. 
 

15. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO CALL FOR A REFERENDUM TO ALLOW THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF 
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO VOTE TO RETAIN THE COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF 
GOVERNMENT OR CHANGE TO THE COUNCIL-MANAGER FORM OF GOVERNMENT 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member McElynn, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve first 
reading of an ordinance to call for a referendum regarding form of government. 
 
Discussion:  To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn, Council 
Member Dawson.  Voting Nay: Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member 
Cunningham.  The motion passed 8:3. 

 

8

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

16. AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY AND IMPOSE A ONE PERCENT LOCAL OPTION SALES AND USE TAX WITHIN 
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, PURSUANT TO SECTION 4-10-10 ET SEQ., OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
CODE OF LAWS, 1976, AS AMENDED; TO DEFINE THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE OF THE TAX; TO IMPOSE 
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS UPON THE USE OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE TAX; TO PROVIDE FOR A COUNTY-
WIDE REFERENDUM FOR THE IMPOSITION OF THE TAX; TO PROVIDE FOR THE CONDUCT OF SUCH 
REFERENDUM; TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE TAX, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING 
THERETO. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Vice-Chairman Sommerville to approve an 
ordinance regarding L.O.S.T. 
 
Discussion:  To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

 
The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Flewelling. Voting Nay: 
Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Cunningham. Motion passed 7:3.  
Council Member Dawson was absent. 
 

17. SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH THE INITIAL RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE FEE AS A 
UNIFORM SERVICE CHARGE FOR THE SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING ENTERPRISE SYSTEM FOR BEAUFORT 
COUNTY TO FUND THE PLANNING, DESIGNING, CONSTRUCTING, AND MAINTAINING SOLID WASTE AND 
RECYCLING MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS, PROJECTS, AND FACILITIES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Lawson, Seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve second 
reading of an ordinance to establish the initial residential solid waste and recycling fee as a uniform service 
charge. 
 
Motion to Amend:  It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council Member Howard to 
amend item changing it from a solid waste fee as a uniformed service charge to a millage rate calculation. 
 
The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Hervochon, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council 
Member McElynn, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member Cunningham. Motion passed 10:0. 
 
Main Motion:  Motion approved without objection. 

18. SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN 
BEAUFORT COUNTY, PORT ROYAL, AND THE CITY OF BEAUFORT- PROJECT BURGER, GLASS, GARDEN, AND 
STONE 

This item was deferred and will come back before Council on April 26th. 

19. THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 
1.96 ACRES (R600 036 000 015E 0000) AT THE INTERSECTION MAY RIVER ROAD AND BENTON LANE FROM 
T3 EDGE TO T2 RURAL CENTER. 
 
EXTEND PAST 9 O’CLOCK 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council Member Cunningham to extend the 
meeting to 9:15 PM.  Motion passed 9:1. Council Member Glover voted against extending.  
 

9

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Lawson, Seconded by Council Member Cunningham to approve 
third reading of an ordinance regarding a zoning map amendment rezoning request. 
 
The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Rodman, Council 
Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member 
Cunningham.  Voting Nay: Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council Member 
Howard.  Motion passed 7:3. 
 

20-25. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Cunningham, Seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve 
all boards and commission recommendations.  Motion approved without objection. 
 
 Recommendation to the Governor's office for reappointment of Pamela Brandon-Hennigh to the Disabilities 

and Special Needs board. 

 Reappointment of Natalie Hefter to the Historic Preservation Review Board.  

 Reappointment of Katrina Epps to the Historic Preservation Review Board.  

 Reappointment of Art Baer to the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation Board. 

 Appointment of James Bennett to the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation Board. 

 Reappointment of Walter Mack to the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation Board. 
 

26. A RESOLUTION TO SET FORTH A UNIFORM POLICY FOR PROCESSING, RESPONDING TO, AND TRACKING 
REQUESTS FOR PUBLIC RECORDS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT SC CODE OF 
LAWS 30-4-10 et seq.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, Seconded by Vice-Chairman Sommerville to approve a 
resolution for a uniform policy for processing, responding to, and tracking requests for public records. 
 
Discussion:  To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443 

 
The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover, Council 
Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn.  Voting Nay: 
Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member Cunningham.  Motion passed 7:3. 

27. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 9:10PM 
  

10

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/118443


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

 

8.  

 
 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

BY: _____________________________________                             

            Joseph F. Passiment, Jr., Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

Ratified:   

 

11

Item 5.



 County Council Caucus Minutes 
Monday, April 12, 2021 at 5:00 PM 

This meeting will be held both in person at County Council Chambers, 

and also virtually through Zoom.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Committee Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.  
 
PRESENT 
Chairman Joseph F. Passiment 
Vice Chairman D. Paul Sommerville 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Logan Cunningham  
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Council Member Flewelling led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
3. FOIA 
Committee Chairman Passiment noted that the Public Notification of this 
meeting has been published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council 
Member Cunningham to approve the agenda. The motion was approved 
without objection.  
 
 
5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
There were no citizen comments.  
 
 

6. AGENDA REVIEW 
Chairman Passiment stated item number 17 on the County Council agenda is 
being pulled because it is not ready to come forward.  
 
 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council 
Member McElynn to go into Executive Session to discuss 3 items.  Motion 
approved without objection. (this motion was originally for items 8 and 9 and 
was clarified it was meant for items 8, 9, and 10). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

County Council of 

Beaufort County 

Caucus 

Chairman 

JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, JR. 

 
Vice Chairman 

D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
 

Council Members 
LOGAN CUNNINGHAM  

GERALD DAWSON  

BRIAN E. FLEWELLING  

YORK GLOVER, SR.  

CHRIS HERVOCHON 

ALICE G. HOWARD  

MARK LAWSON 

LAWRENCE P. MCELYNN 

STU RODMAN 

 

County Administrator 

ERIC GREENWAY 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

12

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

 Pursuant to section 30-4-70. (a) (2) discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements and 
proposed sale or purchase of property. 

 Pursuant to SC code section 30-4-70 (a)(2) to receive legal advice regarding a potential suit to collect unpaid business 
license and accommodations taxes.   

 Pursuant to section 30-4-70. (a) (2) discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual agreements 
regarding economic development. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting Adjourned at 6:10PM 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

BY: _____________________________________                             

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

Ratified:   

 

13

Item 5.



14

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 

ITEM TITLE: 

Beaufort County Stormwater – Designation of Public Works Enforcement Officers (no fiscal impact) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council - June 28th, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION 
Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA- Engineering 
Neil Desai, P.E. - Backup 
(5 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 
November 5th, 2020 - Presentation on Stormwater Ordinance given to Beaufort County Magistrates 
June 9th, 2021 - Presented to Stormwater Utility Board 
June 21st, 2021 – approved at Public Facilities Committee  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

As the Lowcountry of South Carolina experiences development pressures, Beaufort County recognizes the 
need for stronger enforcement of the Beaufort County Stormwater Ordinance in order to have compliance 
with approved Stormwater Permits. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Fees collected by staff at Court will go back into the Stormwater funds. Minimal expenditures to provide 
staff with ticket books and badges. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE: 

Approve the designation of Beaufort County Stormwater Regulatory and Management Staff as Public 
Works enforcement officers to enforce Chapter 99 of the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances. 

OPTIONS FOR COMMITTEE MOTION: 

Motion to designate Beaufort County Stormwater staff as Public Works Enforcement officers. 
 
 

Motion to deny the designation of Beaufort County Stormwater staff as Public Works Enforcement 
officers. 

 
 

(Next Step - Upon approval, send to County Administrator for signature) 

15

Item 13.



 

16

Item 13.



RESOLUTION 2021/_____  
 

 

A RESOLUTION TO COMMISSION PUBLIC WORKS ENFORCEMENT OFFICER TO 

ENFORCE BEAUFORT COUNTY STORMWATER ORDINANCES FOR BEAUFORT 

COUNTY PURSUANT TO SEC 99-504 OF THE BEAUFORT COUNTY STORMWATER 

ORDINANCE. 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council may appoint and commission as many enforcement 

officers as may be necessary for proper security, general welfare and convenience of the County; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, each candidate for appointment as a Beaufort County Public Works Enforcement 

Officer has completed training and obtained any certifications as may be necessary.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council of Beaufort County, South 

Carolina that: 

 

1. County Council hereby appoints and commissions the following individual as a Public 

Works Enforcement Officer for Beaufort County: 

 

  Judah Wood EMP #10341, Beaufort County Public Works Enforcement Officer 

 Julianna Corbin EMP #10350, Beaufort County Public Works Enforcement Officer  

 

2. Each Public Works Enforcement Officer shall present the appropriate certificate to the 

Beaufort County Magistrate’s office prior to any official action as a Public Works 

Enforcement Officer.  

 

Adopted this ___ day of______, 2021. 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

By:      

    Joseph E. Pessiment, Chairman 

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council      

17

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
("COUNCIL") ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING A SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE ("IMPACT FEE") TO BE 
IMPOSED ON ALL NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE 
AREA PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2021/____; TO ENSURE THAT SCHOOL FACILITY SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE AVAILABLE AND ADEQUATE TO ACCOMMODATE THE NEED EXPECTED TO BE 
GENERATED FROM THE SCHOOL CHILDREN IN NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE SOUTH BEAUFORT 
COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE AREA BASED ON THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LEVEL OF SERVICE STANDARDS AND 
CAPITAL IMPROVMENTS PLAN, AND TO ASSIGN THE COSTS OF SUCH PUBLIC SCHOOL FACILITIES ON A 
PROPROTIONATE SHARE BASIS TO NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE SERVICE AREA; AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND THE 
BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND INDIVIDUAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN 
BEAUFORT COUNTY AND THE TOWNS OF BLUFFTON AND HILTON ISLAND AND THE CITY OF HARDEEVILLE  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

May 24th 2021 County Council Meeting  

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Kurt Taylor, County Attorney and Eric Greenway, Interim County Adminstrator   

15-20 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Planning Commission  08/04/20  Motion to Approve failed by a vote of 4:4 

NRC  08/10/20  Motion to Approve by a vote of 7:3 

County Council  08/10/20   1st Reading by Title Only – Motion to Approve by a vote of 5:4 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Beaufort County School District retained Tischler Bise to prepare a Capital Improvement Plan and 
Development Impact Fee Study. Please refer to the School Study reports for these items as the points to 
consider are many for this proposed fee. The fee, as proposed, will only be imposed on new residential 
development in the South of the Broad River Service Area and will apply to each dwelling unit type on the 
following basis: $9,535.00 per single family dwelling and $4,508.00 per Multi-Family Dwelling Unit. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$9,535.00 per single family dwelling and $4,508.00 per Multi-Family Dwelling Unit. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the study as drafted, presented, and recommended by the Beaufort County 
School Board for the Service Area South of the Broad.   

 

18

Item 14.



OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve second reading of An Ordinance Of The County Council Of Beaufort County, South Carolina 
("Council") Establishing And Adopting A School Development Impact Fee ("Impact Fee") To Be Imposed On All 
New Residential Development In The South Beaufort County School Service Area. 

Motion to deny second reading of An Ordinance Of The County Council Of Beaufort County, South Carolina 
("Council") Establishing And Adopting A School Development Impact Fee ("Impact Fee") To Be Imposed On All 
New Residential Development In The South Beaufort County School Service Area. 

 

19

Item 14.



1 

 

ORDINANCE 2021/ ____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA ("COUNCIL") ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING A SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT 

IMPACT FEE TO BE IMPOSED ON ALL NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE 

SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE AREA; TO ENSURE THAT SCHOOL 

FACILITY SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE AVAILABLE AND ADEQUATE TO 

ACCOMMODATE THE NEED EXPECTED TO BE GENERATED FROM THE SCHOOL 

CHILDREN IN NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN THE SOUTH BEAUFORT 

COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE AREA BASED ON THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S LEVEL OF 

SERVICE STANDARDS AND CAPITAL IMPROVMENTS PLAN AND TO ASSIGN THE 

COSTS OF SUCH PUBLIC SCHOOL FACILITIES ON A PROPROTIONATE SHARE BASIS 

TO NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE SERVICE AREA; AND ESTABLISHMENT 

OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND THE 

BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND INDIVIDUAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENTS BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND THE TOWNS OF BLUFFTON AND 

HILTON ISLAND AND THE CITY OF HARDEEVILLE  

WHEREAS, Beaufort County ("County") and the municipalities south of the Broad River (the towns of 

Bluffton and Hilton Head Island and the City of Hardeeville) have experienced rapid population growth 

and development for the past 30 years, and projections indicate that growth will continue at a reasonable 

rate into the future; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the municipalities south of the Broad River have experienced the impacts on 

public facilities resulting from this population growth and development; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County is served by the Beaufort County Board of Education (“School Board”); and 

WHEREAS, population and growth estimates for the Beaufort County School District over the next 10 

years for the area south of the Broad River indicate there will be a need for additional classrooms and other 

school facilities due to population growth and development in that area; and 

WHEREAS, the School Board has defined level of service standards for the area south of the Broad River, 

by school type (elementary, middle, and high school), minimum square feet for school buildings, land (by 

acres), and school buses (per student); and 

WHEREAS, these level of service standards and the projected residential development and student 

generation rates identify these school system improvement needs over the next 10 years; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of these school system improvement needs (school buildings, land, and school buses) 

is significant and expensive; and 

WHEREAS, if bonds, backed only by property taxes, are used to finance these new school facility system 

improvements (school buildings, land, and school buses) needed to accommodate the demand generated by 

new residential development in the area in Beaufort County south of the Broad River, they would be largely 

paid for by second homeowners who do not have children who would use these services; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council finds that it is fair and equitable for new residential development in 

Beaufort County south of the Broad River to fund the required new school facility improvements, in part, 

through a proportionate share school development impact fee; and 

WHEREAS, because all new residential development (single-family and multifamily dwelling units) in 

the area south of the Broad River generates a demand for school facility system improvements based on the 

20

Item 14.



2 

 

same student generation rate (elementary school – 0.106 students per single-family dwelling unit and 0.069 

students per multifamily dwelling unit; middle school– 0.056 students per single-family dwelling unit and 

0.023 students per multifamily dwelling unit; and high school– 0.074 students per single family dwelling 

unit and 0.026 students per multifamily dwelling unit), the school development impact fee shall be imposed 

uniformly within the area south of the Broad River on all new dwelling units (single-family and 

multifamily), as established by the student generation rates, regardless of size or density; and 

WHEREAS, the school development impact fee shall be imposed uniformly on all new dwelling units 

within the area south of the Broad River, regardless of the location of the residential development; and 

WHEREAS, because non-residential development does not directly generate school children, the school 

development impact fee shall not be imposed on such development; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council after giving ample consideration to the provision and financing of new 

school facility system improvements south of the Broad River, and after consulting with the School Board, 

now hereby finds and declares that the establishment and adoption of the school development impact fee 

proposed on new residential development is proportionate and based on the School Board capital 

improvement plan for the area south of the Broad River to accommodate new residential development in 

that area, and current costs to provide the system improvements; and  

WHEREAS, the County and the School Board is empowered to execute an intergovernmental agreement 

on the subject of school development impact fees; and  

WHEREAS, the County and the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island, and the City of Hardeeville are 

empowered to execute an intergovernmental agreement on the subject of school development impact fees; 

and  

WHEREAS, because only the School Board is authorized to construct school facility system 

improvements, intergovernmental agreements shall provide for the transfer of school development impact 

fee revenues from the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island and the City of Hardeeville to the County, 

which then will transfer the fees (including those collected in the unincorporated County by the County) to 

the School Board; and 

WHEREAS, the intergovernmental agreements referred to above, this Ordinance, and the impact fee 

procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq. ensure that the school development impact fees which are 

collected and transferred to the School Board are spent for the new school facility system improvements 

which are identified in the School Board capital improvement plan for the area south of the Broad River 

which are designed to serve the school age children of new residential development in that area; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council deems it advisable to adopt this school development impact fee 

Ordinance, the impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq. of the County Code and the 

intergovernmental agreements with the School Board and the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island and 

the City of Hardeeville as may hereafter be adopted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council of Beaufort County, South Carolina 

that: 

SECTION 1. TEXT AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 82 

The Beaufort County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 82: Impact Fees is amended by adding Article VIII, 

School Development Impact Fees—Southern Beaufort County Service Area, as set forth in Exhibit A, 

which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

21

Item 14.



3 

 

(a) This Ordinance shall become effective  immediately upon approval by Council following third 

reading.  

(b) Applications for new residential development filed after the effective date as set forth in this 

section shall be subject to the school development impact fee established by this Ordinance. 

SECTION 3. LIBERAL CONSTRUCTION. 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed to effectively carry out its purposes in the 

interest of furthering, promoting, and protecting the public health, safety, and welfare. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. 

(a) If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, 

held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such section, subsection, 

sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions 

of this Ordinance nor impair or nullify the remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in 

full force and effect.  

(b) If the application of any provision of this Ordinance to any new development is declared to be 

invalid by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, the intent of County Council is that 

such decision shall be limited only to the specific new development expressly involved in the 

controversy, action or proceeding in which such decision of invalidity was rendered. Such 

decision shall not affect, impair or nullify this Ordinance as a whole or the application of any 

provision of this Ordinance to any other new development.  

 

ADOPTED this ___ day of ____________ 2021 

 

   COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

By: ________________________________ 

Joseph F. Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

22

Item 14.



4 

 

EXHIBIT A 

ARTICLE VIII. SCHOOL FACILITIES—SOUTHERN BEAUFORT COUNTY SERVICE AREA 

SECTION 82-200. ADOPTION AND IMPOSITION OF SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT 

IMPACT FEES. 

Pursuant to the impact fee procedures in Section 82-21 et seq., and the intergovernmental agreements 

between the County and the Beaufort County Board of Education (“School Board”), and the County and 

the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island and the City of Hardeeville which may hereafter be 

adopted, and other applicable provisions of the County Code, this school development impact fee shall be 

adopted and imposed on all new residential development (single-family and multifamily dwelling units) 

in the area of the County south of the Broad River, in accordance with the procedures and requirements of 

this article.  

SECTION 82-201. ESTABLISHMENT OF SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL 

SERVICE AREA.  

(a) The school development impact fee shall be calculated and imposed within the South Beaufort 

County School Service Area, including unincorporated areas as well as those areas within all the 

municipalities in the service area (the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island, and the City of 

Hardeeville), in accordance with intergovernmental agreements between the County and those 

municipalities which may be adopted hereafter.  

(b) The boundaries of the South Beaufort County School Service Area are all areas of the County 

south of the Broad River and are identified in Figure 82-201: South Beaufort County School 

Service Area. 

23

Item 14.



5 

 

FIGURE 82-201: SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE AREA 

 

SECTION 82-202. INCORPORATION OF SUPPORT STUDY  

The County and the municipalities in the South Beaufort County School Service Area (the towns of 

Bluffton, Hilton Head Island and the City of Hardeeville) rely on the level of service standards, land use 

assumptions, methodologies, service units, system improvement costs, formula, and analyses for school 

development impact fees, and the capital improvement plan (CIP) for school facility system 

improvements set out in School Impact Fee Study and Capital Improvement Plan prepared by 

TischlerBise, dated July 27, 2020 (hereinafter “school support study and CIP”). The school support study 

and CIP are incorporated herein by reference. The school support study and CIP set forth reasonable level 

of service standards, land use assumptions, methodologies, service units, system improvement costs, and 

formulas for determining the impacts of new development on the South Beaufort County School Service 

Area's school facility system improvement needs.  

SECTION 82-203. IMPOSITION OF SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES  

(a) Pursuant to this article, intergovernmental agreements between the County and the School Board, 

and the County and all the municipalities in the South Beaufort County School Service Area 

(Bluffton, Hilton Head, and Hardeeville) as may be adopted hereafter, and in accordance with the 

impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq., the State Development Impact Fee 

Act, and the school support study and the CIP (which are incorporated herein by reference) 

school development impact fees shall be imposed in the South Beaufort County School Service 

Area. 

24

Item 14.



6 

 

(b) The school development impact fee shall be imposed on all new residential development in the 

South Beaufort County School Service Area unless the residential development is exempted, or 

an exception or waiver is granted pursuant to Sec. 82-32(b), Development Not Subject to 

Development Impact Fees, or Sec. 82-33(b)(3)c. If an exception or waiver is granted, the 

development impact fees which otherwise would have been due shall be provided to the School 

Board using funds available for new residential growth needs from sources other than school 

development impact fees. 

(c) Residential development in the unincorporated County of the service area shall pay the fees prior 

to issuance of a building permit. Pursuant to individual intergovernmental agreements between 

the County and the municipalities in the service area which maybe entered not herefater, 

residential development in the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island, and the City of 

Hardeeville shall pay the fees prior to issuance of a building permit. A building permit for 

residential development shall not be issued in Bluffton, Hilton Head Island, or Hardeeville 

without confirmation, in writing, from the appropriate building official that the school 

development impact fees have been paid in accordance with this section. 

SECTION 82-204. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE.  

(a) The following general procedure shall be followed upon receipt of an application for a building 

permit for new residential development:  

1) Identify the number and type of dwelling units (either single-family or multifamily) in the 

proposed new or expanded residential development; and 

2) Multiply the number of dwelling units by the school development impact fee in the table 

below, for the type of dwelling unit. 

DWELLING UNIT TYPE FEE 

Single Family $9,535 

Multifamily $4,508 

 

(b) The school development impact fee shall be adjusted annually to reflect the effects of inflation on 

the costs for school facility system improvements set forth in the school support study and CIP, 

beginning on December 1, 2021. In each following year by December 1, the school development 

impact fee amount set forth in Table 1: School Development Impact Fee Schedule, South 

Beaufort County School Service Area, shall be adjusted to account for inflationary increases in 

the costs of providing school facility system costs using the Construction Cost Index calculated 

by the Engineering New Record (ENR). For each such adjustment, the school facilities 

development impact fees currently in use for the service area pursuant to this subsection shall be 

multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the ENR Construction Cost Index for the most 

recent month for which figures are available, and the denominator of which is the ENR 

Construction Cost Index for the period one year prior to the period reflected in the numerator. 

SECTION 82-205. INDIVIDUAL ASSESSMENT OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT.  

(a) In-lieu of calculating the school development impact fees by reference to the fee schedule in the 

table above, a fee payor may request that the amount of the required school development impact 

fees be determined by reference to an Individual Assessment of Development Impact for the 

proposed development.  

25

Item 14.



7 

 

(b) If a fee payor requests the use of an Individual Assessment of Development Impact, the fee payor 

shall be responsible for retaining a qualified professional to prepare the Individual Assessment of 

Development Impact that complies with the requirements of this section, at the fee payor's 

expense.  

(c) Each Individual Assessment of Development Impact shall be based on the same level of service 

standards and system improvement costs for school facility system improvements used in the 

school support study and CIP, shall use the formula for calculating the development impact fee 

used in the school support study and CIP, and shall document the relevant methodologies and 

assumptions used. The burden shall be on the fee payor requesting the Individual Assessment of 

Development Impact to demonstrate by competent evidence that the data and assumptions used in 

the school support study and reflected in the fee schedule in Sec. 82-204 is less accurate than the 

results of the Individual Assessment of Development Impact.  

(d) The Individual Assessment of Development Impact may attempt to demonstrate that student 

generation rates or other factors more accurately reflect the impacts of the proposed development 

(no adjustments in the assumption of credits shall be made). Support for alternate student 

generation rates by land use category or other factors shall only be provided through local data 

and surveys.  

(e) Each Individual Assessment of Development Impact shall be submitted to the Director or a 

designee, and may be accepted, rejected, or accepted with modifications by the Director or a 

designee as the basis for calculating school development impact fees. If an Individual Assessment 

of Development Impact is accepted or accepted with modifications by the Director or a designee 

as a more accurate measure of the demand for school facility system improvements created by the 

proposed new development than the applicable fees in Sec. 82-204, then the development impact 

fees due under this article shall be calculated according to such assessment. 

SECTION 82-206. CREDITS.  

(a) Any developer/fee payor which is obligated to pay a school development impact fee under this 

section may apply for credit against school development impact fees otherwise due up to, but not 

exceeding, the full obligation for the fees proposed to be paid pursuant to the provisions of this 

article for any construction or dedication of land for school facility system improvements that are 

accepted by the County Council and the School Board for systems improvements identified in the 

CIP.  

(b) Valuation of Credits 

1) Credit for land dedication for a school, at the fee payor's option, shall be valued at either (a) 

100 percent of the most recent assessed value for such land as shown in the records of the 

County Assessor, or (b) the fair market value of the land established by a private appraiser 

acceptable to the County Council and School Board in an appraisal paid for by the fee payor.  

2) Credit for construction of a school building shall be valued by the County Council and School 

Board based on construction costs estimates submitted by the fee payor. The County Council, 

after consultation with the School Board, shall determine the amount of credit due based on 

the information submitted, or, if it determines the information is inaccurate or unreliable, then 

on alternative engineering or construction costs acceptable to the County Council and School 

Board.  

(c) When Credits Become Effective 

26

Item 14.



8 

 

1) Credits for land dedication for schools shall become effective after the credit is approved by 

County Council and the School Board pursuant to this section and a Credit 

Agreement/Development Agreement is entered into, and (a) the land has been conveyed to 

the School Board in a form established by the School Board at no cost to the School Board, 

and (b) the dedication of land has been accepted by the School Board.  

2) Credits for construction of school buildings shall become effective after the credit is approved 

by County Council and School Board pursuant to this section, a Credit 

Agreement/Development Agreement is entered into, and (a) all required construction has 

been completed and has been accepted by the School Board, (b) a suitable maintenance and 

warranty bond has been received and approved by the School Board, and (c) all design, 

construction, inspection, testing, bonding, and acceptance procedures have been completed in 

compliance with all applicable School Board requirements.  

3) Credits for construction or dedication of land for school facility system improvements shall 

be transferable within the same development for school development impact fee purposes, but 

shall not be transferable outside the development or used as credit against fees for other 

public facilities. Credit may be transferred pursuant to these terms and conditions by any 

written instrument that clearly identifies which credits issued under this section are to be 

transferred. The instrument shall be signed by both the transferor and transferee, and the 

document shall be delivered to the County Council and School Board for registration.  

4) The total amount of the credit shall not exceed the amount of the school development impact 

fees due and payable for the project.  

5) The County and School Board may enter into a Capital Contribution Front-Ending 

Agreement with any developer/fee payor who proposes to construct school facility system 

improvements in the CIP, to the extent the fair market value of the construction of those 

school facility system improvements exceed the obligation to pay school development impact 

fees for which a credit is provided pursuant to this section. The Capital Contribution Front-

Ending Agreement shall provide proportionate and fair share reimbursement linked to new 

growth and development’s use of the school facility system improvements constructed.  

6) If the offer for credit is approved, a Credit Agreement/Development Agreement shall be 

prepared and signed by the applicant and the County Council and School Board. The Credit 

Agreement/Development Agreement shall specifically outline the construction of school 

buildings or land dedication for schools, the time by which they shall be completed or 

dedicated, and any extensions thereof, and the value (in dollars) of the credit against the 

school development impact fees the fee payor shall receive for the construction of school 

buildings or the dedication of land.  

SECTION 82-207. TRUST ACCOUNT FOR SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES. 

The County and municipalities in the South Beaufort County School Service Area (the towns of Bluffton 

and Hilton Head Island and the City of Hardeeville), may, pursuant to intergovernmental agreements with 

the County, establish segregated School Development Impact Fee Trust Accounts. The agreements may 

provide that all school development impact fees collected by the County and the municipalities for school 

development impact fees shall be placed in their respective Trust Account. By November 1 of each year, 

the municipalities shall transfer the school development impact fees they collect to the County. Upon 

receipt, the County shall place the fees received from each municipality into its School Development 

Impact Fee Trust Account, identifying which fees came from which municipality. Prior to December 1 of 

27

Item 14.



9 

 

each year, the County shall transfer all school development impact fees received and collected to the 

School Board. The Trust Account shall be interest-bearing and all interest earned and accruing to the 

account shall become funds of the account, subject to the same limitations and restrictions on use and 

expenditure of funds that are applicable to school development impact fee funds. 

SECTION 82-208. EXPENDITURE OF FEES FOR SYSTEM IMPROVMENTS.  

School development impact fee funds transferred to the School Board by the County shall be used by the 

School Board in accordance with the County impact fee procedures in Section 82-21 et seq. solely and 

exclusively for school facility system improvements as set forth in the school support study and CIP. 

System improvements generally include the following: school buildings, land, and school buses for public 

elementary, middle, and high schools that are designed to expand school system capacity.  

SECTION 82-209. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT OPTION.  

(a) A developer may pay the school facilities development impact fee as calculated pursuant to 

Section 82-204. Development Impact Fee Schedule, as the proposed development project's 

proportionate share of school facility system improvement costs and as full and complete 

payment of such obligations. In the alternative, the developer may enter into an agreement with 

the County or a participating municipality (as applicable) pursuant to the State Local Government 

Development Agreement Act, and provide for dedication of land or construction of school 

buildings or for payments in-lieu of school development impact fees for school facility system 

improvements.  

(b) A school development impact fee may not be imposed on a developer who has entered into a 

development agreement with the County who provides for the school facility system 

improvement needs of the developer’s development project that is subject to the development 

agreement.  

(c) A development agreement for school facility system improvements in accordance with this 

section may only be entered into with the authorization and approval of both the County and the 

developer, or the participating municipality and the developer (as appropriate), and after 

consultation with the School Board.  

SECTION 82-210. DEVELOPER RIGHTS.  

The developer, pursuant to the State Development Impact Fee Act and the county impact fee procedures 

set forth in Section 82-21 et seq., shall have the following rights, any or all of which may be exercised 

only in accordance with the impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq. 

(a) Administrative Appeal. The developer/applicant may file an administrative appeal with the 

County Administrator with respect to a County or municipal decision related to the imposition, 

calculation, collection, processing, or expenditure of a school development impact fee, at any 

time; provided, however, that such appeal must comply with the provisions and requirements of 

the County impact fee procedures set forth in Section 82-21 et seq. If the appeal follows payment 

of the development impact fee, it must be made within 30 days of the date of fee payment. The 

filing of an appeal will immediately halt the development approval process, unless the 

developer/applicant posts a bond or submits an irrevocable letter of credit for the full amount of 

the impact fees as calculated by the County or municipality to be due.  

(b) Payment under Protest. The developer/applicant may pay the County-calculated or municipality-

calculated school development impact fees under protest, pursuant to the County impact fee 

28

Item 14.



10 

 

procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq. Payment under protest does not preclude the 

developer/applicant from filing an administrative appeal, from requesting a refund, or from 

posting a bond or submitting an irrevocable letter of credit for the amount of the development 

impact fee due, all as set forth in the impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq.  

(c) Mediation. The developer/applicant may request mediation by a qualified independent party, but 

only upon voluntary agreement by both the developer/applicant (fee payor) as well as the County 

(and, if applicable, municipality) and only to address a disagreement related to the school 

development impact fees, as calculated by the County or municipality, for the proposed 

development. Neither request for, nor participation in, mediation shall preclude the 

developer/applicant (fee payor) from pursuing other developer rights and/or remedies, as set forth 

in this article, the County impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq., or other 

remedies available by law.  

SECTION 82-211. COUNTY REMEDIES.  

(a) The County, pursuant to the State Development Impact Fee Act and the County impact fee 

procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq., and the towns of Bluffton and Hilton Head Island 

and the City of Hardeeville, to the extent authorized pursuant to the intergovernmental 

agreements entered into with the County pursuant to this article, shall have all of the following 

remedies, which may be exercised individually or collectively, but only in accordance with the 

impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq.:  

1) Interest and Penalties. The County or municipality may, in its sole discretion, add reasonable 

interest and penalties for nonpayment or late payment to the amount of the calculated school 

development impact fees due, pursuant to the impact fee procedures as set forth in Section 

82-21 et seq. 

2) Withholding Building or Development Permit or Development Approval or Certificate of 

Occupancy. The County or municipality may withhold a certificate of occupancy, a building 

or development permit, or development approval, as may be applicable, until full and 

complete payment has been made by the developer/applicant of the school development 

impact fees due.  

3) Lien. The County may impose a lien on the developer's property, pursuant to the impact fee 

procedures as set forth in Section 82-21 et seq., for failure of the developer/applicant to 

timely pay the required school development impact fees in full.  

(b) The County or municipality may pursue any one or all of the remedies described in subsection (a) 

of this section at its discretion. The failure to pursue any remedy or remedies, at any time, shall 

not be deemed to be a waiver of County or municipal rights to pursue any remedy or remedies at 

such other time as may be deemed appropriate. 

SECTION 82-212. REFUND OF FEES 

(a) A collected school development impact fee shall be refunded to the owner of record of property 

on which a school development impact fee has been paid if: 

1) The school development impact fee revenues collected on the property have not been 

expended within three years of the date they were scheduled to be expended, pursuant to the 

school support study and CIP; or 

29

Item 14.



11 

 

2) A building permit or permit for installation of a manufactured home on the property is 

subsequently denied. 

(b) The amount, timing, and recipient of any refund required by this article of collected school 

development impact fees shall comply with the standards of Sec. 82-35. 

SECTION 82-213. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS.  

The County and the School District may enter into an intergovernmental agreement as may the County 

and the municipalities in the South Beaufort County School Service Area (the towns of Bluffton and 

Hilton Head Island and the City of Hardeeville). These intergovernmental agreements shall:  

(a) Specify the reasonable share of funding of joint system improvements for school facility system 

improvements by each governmental unit; and 

(b) Provide for the collection of the school development impact fee by the municipality within its 

corporate limits and by the County within the unincorporated area; and 

(c) Provide for the timely transfer of school development impact fee revenues from the municipality 

to the County, and then the transfer of the fees collected by the participating municipalities and 

the County to the School Board; and  

(d) Provide for the timely expenditure of the school development impact fee revenues by the School 

Board, in accordance with the CIP. 

SECTION 82-214. TERMINATION OF THE SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES.  

The school development impact fees shall terminate upon the completion/conclusion of all of the school 

development impact fee-funded school facility system improvements as set forth in the CIP unless:  

(a) The School Board adopts a capital improvements plan for a subsequent time period for the South 

Beaufort County School Service Area; or  

(b) The County adopts an updated school development impact fee pursuant to the substantive and 

procedural requirements of the State Development Impact Fee Act. 

 

Sections 82-215—82-219. RESERVED. 

30

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

AN ORDINANCE TO CALL FOR A REFERENDUM TO ALLOW THE QUALIFIED 
ELECTORS OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO VOTE TO RETAIN 
THE COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT OR CHANGE TO THE 

COUNCIL-MANAGER FORM OF GOVERNMENT 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Executive Committee April 5, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Kurt Taylor, County Attorney  

10 minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

County Council has expressed interest in holding a referendum regarding whether to keep the council-
administrator form of government or change to the council-manager form of government. This ordinance calls 
for the referendum 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

See above 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

n/a  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Recommend approval 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny Ordinance regarding a referendum to potentially change the form of government. 

 

 

 

31

Item 15.



Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE 2021/_____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO CALL FOR A REFERENDUM TO ALLOW THE QUALIFIED 

ELECTORS OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO VOTE TO RETAIN 

THE COUNCIL/ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT OR CHANGE TO THE 

COUNCIL/MANAGER FORM OF GOVERNMENT, AND OTHER MATTERS 

RELATED THERETO.  

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is authorized pursuant to Section 4-9-10 of the South Carolina Code 

of Laws (1976), as amended.  The purpose of this Ordinance shall be to provide for a referendum 

to allow the qualified electors of Beaufort County, South Carolina to vote to retain the current 

Council-Administrator form of government or to change to the Council-Manager form of 

government; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Beaufort County shall take such steps 

as are necessary and appropriate to hold a referendum in conjunction with the election to be held 

on November 2, 2021 to allow the qualified electors of Beaufort County, South Carolina to vote 

on the issue of retaining the current Council-Administrator form of government or changing to the 

Council-Manager form of government as provided for in Section 4-9-610, et. Seq., Code of Laws 

of South Carolina (1976) as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the question for such referendum shall be stated as follows: 

Should the form of Beaufort County’s government be changed from that of a 

Council-Administrator form of government as set forth in S.C. Code of Laws Title 

4, Chapter 9, Article 7 (1976, as amended) to that of a Council-Manager form of 

government as set forth in S.C. Code of Laws Title 4, Chapter 9, Article 9 (1976, 

as amended) and provide for the appointment of the County Treasurer and County 

Auditor? 

INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTER:  

If the voter wishes to vote in favor of the question, fill in the oval next to the words, 

“Yes, In favor of the question;” if the voter wishes to vote against the question, fill 

in the oval next to the words, “No, Opposed to the question.” 

 

    Yes, In favor of the question 

 

     No, Opposed to the question 

 

EXPLANATION: 

A “yes” vote is a vote in favor of changing the current form of government to a 

Council-Manager form of government which could provide for the appointment of 

32

Item 15.



Page 2 of 2 
 

the County Treasurer and County Auditor.  A “no” vote is a vote to retain the 

current Council-Administrator form of government and provide for the continued 

election of the County Auditor and County Treasurer.) 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, the Board of Voter Registration and Elections of 

Beaufort County shall conduct a referendum as stated above, publish appropriate notices of 

election, comply with all other notices and requirements as set forth in law, and shall verify the 

results of such referendum as provided by law. 

Should the present form of government receive a majority favorable vote of those qualified electors 

voting, the present form shall continue without further action by the Beaufort County Council.  

Should the Council-Manager form of government receive a majority favorable vote of those 

qualified electors voting, then, in such event, the Beaufort County Council shall enact an 

Ordinance establishing the new form of government in accordance with the provisions of 

applicable law. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, 

SOUTH CAROLINA, ON THIS _________ DAY OF _______________________, 20______. 

  

 COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

        Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

W. Kurt Taylor, County Attorney 

 

 

ATTEST:  

    

    

______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council   

 

 

First Reading:   

Second Reading:   

Public Hearing:   

Third and Final Reading:   

33

Item 15.



ORDINANCE 2021/______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A QUIT CLAIM DEED AND 
WAIVER OF REVERTER FOR REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1508 OLD SHELL ROAD 

WITH TMS NO. R110 011 000 105A 0000 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (“County”) previously conveyed title in the property located at 1508 
Old Shell Road with TMS No. R700 036 000 013J 0000 (“Property”) to the now known as South Carolina 
Department of Disabilities and Special Needs (“SCDDSN”) by deed dated February 1, 1979 and recorded 
in Deed Book 276 at Page 1384 in the Beaufort County Office of the Register of Deeds; and  

WHEREAS, the aforementioned deed to SCDDSN included a reverter clause providing “that 
should the heretofore described property cease to be used by the South Carolina Department of Mental 
Retardation, then the property intended to be conveyed herein shall revert to the Grantor Beaufort County”; 
and  

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2017, the Beaufort County Council approved Resolution 2017/1 
which approved the request to the Beaufort County Legislative Delegation to “work diligently to pass a 
proviso to the South Carolina General Assembly session that would require the return of 100% of the 
proceeds of the future sale of the Port Royal CRCF property to Beaufort County for the express purpose of 
purchasing, constructing, or renovating several new small residential facilities for its residents with 
developmental disabilities that would both conform to compliance directives on appropriate residential 
settings for these persons and better enable Beaufort County to provide the necessary ongoing care for these 
residents in safer, more appropriate housing”; and     

WHEREAS, in accordance with Beaufort County Resolution 2017/1, the South Carolina General 
Assembly enacted Proviso 34.14 which states that proceeds from the sale of the Property will be provided 
to the local Disabilities and Special Needs Board of Beaufort County to “be used by the department to 
purchase a new property for the local Disabilities and Special Needs Board in Beaufort County”; and  

WHEREAS, the SCDDSN desires to sell the Property for Seven Hundred Sixty Thousand 
($760,000) Dollars to a private citizen; and  

WHEREAS, due to the reverter clause included in the February 1, 1979 deed, the County must 
execute a quit claim deed conveying any interest it may have in the Property and execute a waiver of reverter 
in order for SCDDSN to convey a clear title to the purchaser of the property and complete the sale of the 
Property; and      

WHEREAS, pursuant to Beaufort County Resolution 2017/1 and Proviso 34.14, when SCDDSN 
completes the sale of the Property, the County will receive 100% of the proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, S.C. Code Ann. §4-9-130 requires that the transfer of any interest in real property 
owned by the County must be authorized by the adoption of an Ordinance by Beaufort County Council.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Beaufort County Council hereby authorizes the 
Interim County Administrator to execute a quit claim deed and waiver of reverter for the real property 
located at 1508 Old Shell Road with TMS No. R700 036 000 013J 0000. 

 

34

Item 16.



Adopted this _____ day of ________________, 2021. 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
 

   

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:  

_____________________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council  

35

Item 16.



36

Item 16.



37

Item 16.



South Carolina General Assembly 
123rd Session, 2019-2020  

H. 4000 
General Appropriations Bill for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

Ratified Version 

PART IB 
OPERATION OF STATE GOVERNMENT 

 
SECTION 36 - J160 - DEPARTMENT OF DISABILITIES 

 
AND SPECIAL NEEDS 

 
36.14.      (DDSN: Beaufort DSN Facility)  For Fiscal Year 2018-19, the Department of Disabilities 
and Special Needs is authorized to retain the full amount of proceeds from the sale of the local 
Disabilities and Special Needs Board of Beaufort County property.  The funds retained from this 
sale must be used by the department to purchase a new property for the local Disabilities and 
Special Needs Board in Beaufort County that more appropriately meets the needs of the individuals 
served.  Unexpended funds may be carried forward into the current fiscal year and used for the 
same purpose.  The department must provide a status report to the Beaufort County Legislative 
Delegation by June 30, 2019, detailing the retention of any sale proceeds and/or the expenditures 
of those funds. 

38

Item 16.



From: Holloway, Constance
To: Ward, Brittany
Cc: McLeod, Kimberly
Subject: 1508 Old Shell Road in Port Royal
Date: Wednesday, April 28, 2021 9:31:56 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Please report any suspicious attachments, links, or requests for
sensitive information to the Beaufort County IT Division at helpdesk@bcgov.net or to
843-255-7000. 

Ms. Ward,

The South Carolina Department of Disabilities and Special Needs fully intends to transfer the funds
from the sale of the property located at 1508 Old Shell Road in Port Royal to Beaufort County, in
accordance with Proviso 36.14. The Department is legally bound to comply with the terms of budget
provisos set forth by the General Assembly.

I hope my email provides Beaufort County Council the assurance it needs to continue moving
forward with this process. We look forward to continuing to work with Beaufort County to serve the
disability community. Please do not hesitate to reach out if you have any additional questions or
concerns.  

CONSTANCE HOLLOWAY
General Counsel

Constance.Holloway@ddsn.sc.gov
803-898-9683
803-898-9656
3440 Harden Street Ext
www.ddsn.sc.gov

, Columbia, SC 29203

Confidentiality Notice:
The information contained in this transmission, including attachments may contain privileged and
confidential information, including consumer/patient information protected by federal and state privacy
laws. It is intended only for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient,
you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, distribution, or duplication of this communication is
strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and
destroy all copies of the original message.

39

Item 16.



  

(Please do not write above this line – Reserved for Register of Deeds Office) 

         Prepared by:  Howell Gibson and Hughes PA 
                Post Office Box 40 

             Beaufort, SC 29901-0040 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     )       QUIT CLAIM DEED 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  )             
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
  THAT, BEAUFORT COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of 

South Carolina (“GRANTOR"), for and in consideration of the sum of ONE AND 

NO/100 ($1.00) DOLLARS to it in hand paid at and before the sealing of these 

presents EBB TIDE ADVENTURES, LLC, with an address of 1734 Riverside 

Drive, Port Royal, SC 29935 ("GRANTEE"), in the State aforesaid, the receipt 

whereof is hereby acknowledged, have granted, bargained, sold and released 

and by these presents do hereby grant, bargain, sell, and release unto the said 

EBB TIDE ADVENTURES, LLC, its successors and assigns in fee simple, the 

following described real property, to-wit: 

SEE ATTACHED PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AS EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 TOGETHER with all and singular the rights, members, hereditaments and 

appurtenances to the said premises belonging to or in anywise incident or 

appertaining. 

 

40

Item 16.



 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, all and singular, the said premises before 

mentioned unto EBB TIDE ADVENTURES, LLC its successors and assigns 

forever. 

 WITNESS our hand and seal this ____ day of _________, 2021. 

Signed, Sealed and Delivered 

In the Presence of:                Beaufort County 
 
___________________________   ______________________(SEAL) 
           Eric L. Greenway 
        Its: Interim Administrator 
 
___________________________  
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT             ) 
 
 I, _____________________ do hereby certify that Eric L. Greenway, 
Interim County Administrator for Beaufort County, personally appeared before 
me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.    
  
Witness my hand and official seal this ________ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
    __________________________________  
    Notary Public of South Carolina 
    My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41

Item 16.



 
EXHIBIT "A" 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, situate, lying and being in the Town of Port 
Royal, Beaufort County, South Carolina, containing one and seventy-four hundredths 
(1.74) acres as is more fully shown on a plat prepared for Beaufort County Human 
Resources Center by R. D. Trogdon, R.L.S., under date of November 22, 1976; said 
parcel of land is described as follows, to-wit: Commencing at a found monument, which 
monument is located along the mean high water mark of Beaufort River, thence 
proceeding N37°29'47"W for a distance of Three Hundred Three and Seventy-One 
Hundredths (303.71') feet to a concrete marker; thence proceeding N89°54'14"E for a 
distance of One Hundred Seventy-Five and Eighty-Five Hundredths (175.85') feet to a 
point; thence proceeding N43°55'17"E for a distance of Two Hundred Eighty-Seven and 
Eighteen Hundredths (287.18') feet to a found monument; thence proceeding 
S0°06'20"E for a distance of Three Hundred Sixty and Fifty-Seven Hundredths (360.57') 
feet to a found monument located along the mean high water mark of Beaufort River; 
thence proceeding S89°37'55"W for a distance of One Hundred Ten and Fifteen 
Hundredths (110.15') feet, more or less, along the mean high water mark of Beaufort 
River, to a point; thence proceeding S42°54' W for a distance of One Hundred Eighteen 
and Fifty-Three Hundredths (118.53') feet more or less, along the mean high water mark 
of Beaufort River, to a found monument, which monument is the point of beginning. For 
a more accurate description of said parcel as to metes, bounds, distances and courses, 
reference is had to the aforementioned plat which is recorded in Plat Book 25 at Page 59 
in the Office of the Clerk of Court for Beaufort County; South Carolina. Reference is also 
made to an individual plat prepared for the South Carolina Department of Mental 
Retardation by R. D. Trogdon, Jr., R.L.S., dated September 19, 1978 and recorded in 
the Office of the Clerk of Court for Beaufort County in Plat Book 27 at Page 132. 

This being the property acquired by the South Carolina Department of Disabilities and 
Special Needs, f/k/a the South Carolina Department of Mental Retardation, by deed from 
Beaufort County dated February 1, 1979, and recorded February 2, 1979, in Deed Book 
276 at Page 1384, in the Office of the Register Mesne Conveyance for Beaufort County. 

Tax Map No.: R110 011 000 105A 0000  

Less and except 
A parcel of 0.03± of an acre conveyed by the State of South Carolina, by and through 
the Department of Administration, to Daniel Joseph Frese and Pamela Breil Frese, as 
Joint Tenants with Rights of Survivorship, and not as Tenants in Common, by deed 
recorded December 13, 2019 in Book 3820 at Page 191 in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds for Beaufort County. 
 
This deed was prepared by the law offices of Howell, Gibson and Hughes, PA, Post 
Office Box 40, Beaufort, SC 29901-0040 without a current survey and without title 
examination or certifications.   

42

Item 16.



 

43

Item 16.



  

(Please do not write above this line – Reserved for Register of Deeds Office) 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

 )          WAIVER OF REVERTER 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT ) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Beaufort County, in consideration of 
the sum of Ten and no/100 ($10.00) Dollars, does hereby consent to the transfer of the 
hereinafter described real property from the State of South Carolina, by and through their 
Department of Administration to Ebb Tide Adventures, LLC and does specifically waive any 
and all rights of reverter contained within and described in that certain deed from Beaufort 
County to the South Carolina Department of Mental Retardation having been recorded in the 
Office of the Register of Deeds for Beaufort County on February 2, 1979 in Records Book 
276 at Page 1384:  

Grantor:  Beaufort County 

Grantee:  Ebb Tide Adventures, LLC 

PURCHASE PRICE: $10,000.00 

REAL PROPERTY: See “Exhibit A” 
 
 
 
WITNESS the hand and seal of the undersigned this ______ day, _______, 2021.  
 
 SIGNED SEALED AND DELIVERED          
 IN THE PRESENCE OF:                                  
      BEAUFORT COUNTY   
          
 
___________________________  _________________________________(SEAL) 
           Eric L. Greenway 
                  Interim Beaufort County Administrator 
___________________________      
               
 

44

Item 16.



 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT             ) 
 
 I, _________________, do hereby certify that Eric L. Greenway, personally appeared 
before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.    
 
 Witness my hand and official seal this ____ day of __________________, 2021. 
 
 
    __________________________________  
    Notary Public of South Carolina 
    My commission expires:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45

Item 16.



 
EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, situate, lying and being in the Town of Port Royal, 
Beaufort County, South Carolina, containing one and seventy-four hundredths (1.74) acres as is more 
fully shown on a plat prepared for Beaufort County Human Resources Center by R. D. Trogdon, 
R.L.S., under date of November 22, 1976; said parcel of land is described as follows, to-wit: 
Commencing at a found monument, which monument is located along the mean high water mark of 
Beaufort River, thence proceeding N37°29'47"W for a distance of Three Hundred Three and 
Seventy-One Hundredths (303.71') feet to a concrete marker; thence proceeding N89°54'14"E for a 
distance of One Hundred Seventy-Five and Eighty-Five Hundredths (175.85') feet to a point; thence 
proceeding N43°55'17"E for a distance of Two Hundred Eighty-Seven and Eighteen Hundredths 
(287.18') feet to a found monument; thence proceeding S0°06'20"E for a distance of Three Hundred 
Sixty and Fifty-Seven Hundredths (360.57') feet to a found monument located along the mean high 
water mark of Beaufort River; thence proceeding S89°37'55"W for a distance of One Hundred Ten 
and Fifteen Hundredths (110.15') feet, more or less, along the mean high water mark of Beaufort 
River, to a point; thence proceeding S42°54' W for a distance of One Hundred Eighteen and Fifty-
Three Hundredths (118.53') feet more or less, along the mean high water mark of Beaufort River, to a 
found monument, which monument is the point of beginning. For a more accurate description of said 
parcel as to metes, bounds, distances and courses, reference is had to the aforementioned plat which 
is recorded in Plat Book 25 at Page 59 in the Office of the Clerk of Court for Beaufort County; South 
Carolina. Reference is also made to an individual plat prepared for the South Carolina Department of 
Mental Retardation by R. D. Trogdon, Jr., R.L.S., dated September 19, 1978 and recorded in the 
Office of the Clerk of Court for Beaufort County in Plat Book 27 at Page 132. 

This being the property acquired by the South Carolina Department of Disabilities and Special 
Needs, f/k/a the South Carolina Department of Mental Retardation, by deed from Beaufort County 
dated February 1, 1979, and recorded February 2, 1979, in Deed Book 276 at Page 1384, in the 
Office of the Register Mesne Conveyance for Beaufort County. 

Tax Map No.: R110 011 000 105A 0000 

Less and except 

A parcel of 0.03± of an acre conveyed by the State of South Carolina, by and through the Department 
of Administration, to Daniel Joseph Frese and Pamela Breil Frese, as Joint Tenants with Rights of 
Survivorship, and not as Tenants in Common, by deed recorded December 13, 2019 in Book 3820 at 
Page 191 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Beaufort County. 
 
This instrument was prepared by the Law Offices of Howell, Gibson & Hughes, P.A., with an 
address of PO Box 40, Beaufort, SC 29901 without the benefit of a title examination or 
certifications.   

46

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 5.23 acres (R100 027 000 042B 0000) at 335 Joe Frazier Rd 
from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Center  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, June 7, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Noah Krepps, Long Range Planner, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This rezoning application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their May 3, 2021 
meeting. At that time the Commission voted (4 for and 1 against) to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment to County Council. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant seeks to change the zoning of a 5.23-acre lot at 335 Joe Frazier Rd from T2 Rural (T2R) to T2 
Rural Center (T2RC) (see attached map). A moving, storage, and trucking company has operated on the 
property since 1994. The property was zoned Traditional Overlay under the Zoning and Development 
Standards Ordinance (ZDSO). The applicant believes the property should have been designated T2RC or S1 
Industrial (S1) with the adoption of the Community Development Code, as the Warehousing use predates the 
1999 and 2014 zoning ordinances and is a non-conforming use under the current T2R zoning. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The proposed zoning change from T2R to T2RC constitutes a “spot zoning” and cannot be supported by 
Planning staff. Staff also has concerns about noise, odor, and aesthetic impacts on the surrounding residential 
area if more intense uses (such as major vehicle maintenance and repair) are permitted on the property under 
the T2RC zoning district. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the zoning amendment for 335 Joe Frazier Road from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Center. 

 

 

47

Item 17.



ZMA 2021-02 – 335 Joe Frazier Rd Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RC  Page 1 of 6 
 

 

TO:   Beaufort County Planning Commission 

FROM:  Noah Krepps, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning Department 

DATE:  April 26, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 5.23 acres (R100 027 000 042B 0000) at 

335 Joe Frazier Rd from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Center  

 

STAFF REPORT: 

A.  BACKGROUND: 

 Case No.    ZMA-2021-02 

Owner/Applicant:  Frank O. Plair and Billy J. Plair 

Property Location:  Located at 335 Joe Frazier Rd 

District/Map/Parcel:  R100 027 000 042B 0000 

Property Size:   5.23 acres 

Current Future Land Use 

Designation:   Neighborhood Mixed-Use 

Current Zoning District:  T2 Rural 

Proposed Zoning District: T2 Rural Center 

B.  SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The applicant seeks to change the zoning of a 5.23-acre lot at 335 Joe 

Frazier Rd from T2 Rural (T2R) to T2 Rural Center (T2RC) (see attached map). A moving, storage, 

and trucking company has operated on the property since 1994. The property was zoned Traditional 

Overlay under the Zoning and Development Standards Ordinance (ZDSO). The applicant believes the 

property should have been designated T2RC or S1 Industrial (S1) with the adoption of the 

Community Development Code, as the Warehousing use predates the 1999 and 2014 zoning 

ordinances and is a non-conforming use under the current T2R zoning.  

 The T2RC district allows a diverse mix of land uses including residential, retail, service, and limited 

light industrial. It is a lower intensity walkable area in the immediate vicinity of a rural crossroads or 

other important rural intersection. 

E.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP: This 5.23-acre lot is designated 

Neighborhood Mixed-Use on the Future Land Use Map. Future development in neighborhood mixed-

MEMORANDUM 

48

Item 17.



ZMA 2021-02 – 335 Joe Frazier Rd Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RC  Page 2 of 6 
 

use areas should be primarily residential with some supporting neighborhood retail establishments. A 

very small percentage of the designated area should consist of commercial development. 

F.  ZONING MAP AMENDMENT REVIEW STANDARDS:  In determining whether to adopt or 

deny a proposed Zone Map Amendment, the County Council shall weigh the relevance of and 

consider whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment: 

1. Is consistent with and furthers the goals, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and the 

purposes of this Development Code;  

 

The Land Use chapter of the Comprehensive Plan indicates that Neighborhood Mixed-Use areas 

should be primarily residential with some supporting neighborhood retail and service 

establishments. However, the potential for intense uses on the property, such as vehicle repairs, 

does not maintain the residential character of this land use designation.   

 

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of Ordinances; 

 

The proposed rezoning constitutes a “spot zoning,” as it is not adjacent to any other T2 Rural 

Center parcels. 

 

3. Addresses a demonstrated community need;  

 

See 1 above. 

 

4. Is required by changed conditions;  

 

N/A. 

 

5. Is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the 

application, and is the appropriate zone and uses for the land;  

 

Existing uses on the surrounding land are primarily residential. The proposed zoning change 

would allow for a broader mix of intense commercial, service, and light industrial uses.  

 

6. Would not adversely affect nearby lands;  

 

As stated in 5, there is potential for adverse impacts on the existing residential developments in 

the adjacent area. 

 

7. Would result in a logical and orderly development pattern; 

See 5 and 6 above. 

 

8. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment – including, but not limited 

to, water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the 

natural functioning of the environment:  

 

49

Item 17.



ZMA 2021-02 – 335 Joe Frazier Rd Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RC  Page 3 of 6 
 

Any development on the site would be required to adhere to the natural resource protection, tree 

protection, wetland protection, and stormwater standards in the Community Development Code 

and the Stormwater BMP Manual.   

 

9. Would result in development that is adequately served by public facilities (e..g. streets, 

potable water, sewerage, stormwater management, solid waste collection and disposal, 

schools, parks, police, and fire and emergency medical facilities):  

The site is connected to public water. 

G. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The proposed zoning change from T2R to T2RC constitutes a 

“spot zoning” and cannot be supported by Planning staff. Staff also has concerns about noise, odor, 

and aesthetic impacts on the surrounding residential area if more intense uses (such as major vehicle 

maintenance and repair) are permitted on the property under the T2RC zoning district. 

H.  PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At the May 3, 2021 meeting of the Beaufort 

County Planning Commission, the Commission voted (4 for and 1 against) to recommend approval of 

the proposed amendment to County Council. 

I. ATTACHMENTS 

 Zoning Map (existing and proposed) 

 Location Map 

 

50

Item 17.



ZMA 2021-02 – 335 Joe Frazier Rd Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RC  Page 4 of 6 
 

   

51

Item 17.



ZMA 2021-02 – 335 Joe Frazier Rd Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RC  Page 5 of 6 
 

 

PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT 

52

Item 17.



ORDINANCE 2021 / __ 

  

 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 5.23 ACRES (R100 027 000 042B 

0000) AT 335 JOE FRAZIER RD FROM T2 RURAL TO T2 RURAL CENTER. 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed amendment is outlined in red on the attached map.  

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of __________ 2021. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 
 

53

Item 17.



  

54

Item 17.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

First Reading of an Ordinance for the FY2021 Budget Amendment 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council Meeting, May 24, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Whitney Richland, Chief Financial Officer 

10 Minutes 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

During the year, there have been unbudgeted expenditures (approved by Council or Committee), and some 
budgetary shortfalls in personnel costs, professional services, IT equipment and other capital outlays, facilities 
maintenance and subsidies to others. Administration is seeking an amendment to reallocate unspent 
personnel costs resulting from vacancies as well as an increase in revenues to cover the shortfall in the 
aforementioned areas. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

In Fiscal Year 2021, Council has entered in settlements and agreements that were not in the original budget. 
Administration also identified other areas in need of additional funding that can be achieved by reallocations 
from the existing appropriations as well as an increase in revenues derived from the recording of legal 
documents by the Register of Deeds. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Please see the related review of revenues and expenditures presented. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

We recommend Council approve this budget amendment. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny FY2021 Budget Amendment.  

 

 

 

55

Item 1.



2021 / __ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND BEAUFORT COUNTY ORDINANCE 2020/22 FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2021 BEAUFORT COUNTY BUDGET TO PROVIDE CLARIFYING 

AMENDMENT TO ACKNOWLEDGE THE TRANSFERS BETWEEN COUNTY 

DEPARTMENTS.  

 

 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2020, Beaufort County Council adopted Ordinance No. 2020/22 

which sets the County’s FY 2020-2021 budget and associated expenditures; and  

 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2020, Beaufort County Council adopted Ordinance No. 2020/22 

dedicating particular millage amounts to be dedicated to General Fund operations; and  

 WHEREAS, in the interest of good accounting practices and transparency in the budget 

process it is necessary to amend the budget to reflect newly available details; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council has determined it to be in the best interests of its 

citizens to regularly review and update as needed the County’s approved budget and expenditures.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by Beaufort County Council that the FY 

2020-2021 Beaufort County Budget Ordinance (Ordinance 2020/22) is hereby amended as shown 

on the attached “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

DONE this ___day of ___, 2021. 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 
 

56

Item 1.



Exhibit "A"

Amount: Fund Description:
1 5,077,245.00$                 General Vacancy Savings (24 Departments)
2 2,500,000.00$                 General Register of Deeds
3

7,577,245.00$                 

Amount: Fund Description:
1 390,000.00$                     General County Council - Legal Fees
2 350,000.00$                     General County Attorney - Legal Issues Shortfall
3 100,000.00$                     General County Council - Distance Learning 
4 42,000.00$                       General Legal - WhiteHall Settlement Payment
5 625,000.00$                     General CAI Payment 
6 35,000.00$                       General Finance- Internal Audit Fees
7 706,000.00$                     General PLT Payout
8 1,700,000.00$                 General Personnel Costs
9 90,000.00$                       General New Riverside Library Pre-Purchase 

10 400,000.00$                     General Parks & Recreation Facilities
11 575,000.00$                     General EMS Ambulances - new & remounts
12 150,000.00$                     General Clerk of Court Furniture
13 1,000,000.00$                 General Information Technology Infrastructure & Equipment

6,163,000.00$                 General FY21 Budget Amendment

1,414,245.00$                 Remaining for reallocation if needed

FY21 Budget Reallocation 

Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

57

Item 1.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Finance Committee’s Recommendation for FY22 Contract Renewal Approvals over $100,000 from Various 
Departments to County Council 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council Meeting, June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

David L. Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 

Purchasing Director, 5 minutes  

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

To improve our process for renewing annual contracts a summary sheet (see the attached excel sheet) is 
provided for Council’s review and approval.  The summary sheet provides the vendor name, purpose, 
requesting department, account name and number, prior and current contract cost, term, and notes.  The 
Department Head responsible for the contract or their representative will be available for questions during the 
Council meeting. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Cost increases in some of the contracts are due COVID-19, additions to services and CPI adjustments. See the 
notes section on the attached summary sheet for each contract.  Department backup support is also included 
and numbered to match the contract item number on the contract list. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

See the attached Excel Summary Sheet covering contracts A-G. Accounts used, FY21 and the new FY 22 cost 
are included on the attached Excel Summary Sheet. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The Finance Committee recommends to County Council, approval of the contract renewals (Items A-G) as 
stated in the attached summary. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Approve or Deny the contract renewals.   

 
 

58

Item 2.



 

Finance Committee’s approved FY22 Contract Renewals over $100,000 for County Council 
Approval 

A. SHI - MICROSOFT 365 RENEWAL - $471,148.03  

B. MANATRON (AUMENTUM) - PROPERTY ASSESSMENT TAX SOFTWARE - $241,922.72  

C. TYLER TECHNOLOGIES - ANNUAL SUPPORT LICENSE MUNIS - $233,365.93  

D. TYLER TECHNOLOGIES (ENERGOV) - $174,535.28 

E. NWN (CISCO SMARTNET) - PHONE SYSTEM GEAR NETWORK - $172,820 

F. THINKGUARD - OFFSITE DISASTER RECOVERY - $121,543  

G. PICTOMETRY INTERNATION CORP - LICENSE IMAGE SOFTWARE - $120,875.36  

59

Item 2.



Vendor Purpose Department Account  FY21 Cost  FY22 Cost 
Term 

(Beg/End)

1

Pictometry 
International 
Corporation

Rochester, New 
York

License Image 
Software/Aerial 

Photos
GIS/IT

Aerial Photos
10001152‐51250

$91,985.36 $120,875.36
7/1/2020

 thru 
6/30/2021

Daniel 
Morgan

NOTES

2

Manatron 
(Aumentum)(Tho

mson Reuters) 
(Now Harris)

Chicago, Illinois

Property 
Assessment and Tax 

Software and 
Support for the 

Assessor, Auditor 
and Treasurer's 

Offices

GIS/IT
Maintenance 

Contracts
10001152‐51110

$215,330.00 $241,922.72
7/1/2020

 thru 
6/30/2021

Daniel 
Morgan

NOTES

3
Tyler Technologies 
(MUNIS)   Dallas, 

Texas

Annual Support and 
License Agreement 

for MUNIS
GIS/IT

Maintenance 
Contracts 10001152‐

51110
$233,365.93 $233,365.93

07/01/2020  
Thru 

06/30/2021

Daniel 
Morgan

NOTES

4 Thinkguard

Offsite disaster 
recovery and 

backup of critical 
county servers and 

data

IT 10001150‐51110 $95,076.00 $121,543
07/01/2020  

Thru 
06/30/2021

Patrick Hill

NOTES

5 NWN (Cisco 
Smartnet)

Phone System and 
Partial network 

Gear
IT 10001150‐51110 $158,429.00  *172,820.00

07/01/2021  
Thru 

06/30/2022
Patrick Hill

NOTES

6 SHI

Microsoft 365 
Renewal and 

Renewal for Servers 
and Desktop 

Operating Systems

IT 10001150‐51110 $275,195.41 *$471,148.03
07/01/2021  

Thru 
06/30/2022

Patrick Hill

NOTES

7
Tyler Technologies 
(EnerGov)   Dallas, 

Texas

Annual Support and 
License Agreement 

for EnerGov
GIS/IT

Maintenance 
Contracts 10001152‐

51110
$166,224.07 $174,535.28

07/01/2020  
Thru 

06/30/2021

Daniel 
Morgan

NOTES The additional costs are for typical software updates. Tax is included in the above number

Additional costs due to conforming to off‐season flight and fuel costs. (2nd year of 2021 flight and 1st year of 2022 flight). From the total 
amount $25,000.00 will be supplemented from annual participation from Town of HHI and Town of Bluffton and the SWU Department.

This is for the 1500 users on the network that have email, onedrive and teams as well as our 2000+ workstations and servers on the network

Cost increase due to new phone server operating system *This cost is phone system and network combined*

The additional costs are for typical software updates and this year they are charging taxes.

This is year 2 of 3 the recurring fee is $218,099.00 we must pay the tax of 7% which makes the total $233.365.00

This system backs up all of the County's critical servers and data

*Note - The  contracts listed below are not in the same order as the list on the previous page

60

Item 2.



Budget Proposal

Proposal for: Beaufort County, SC 
Project Name: SCBEAU22
Quote Number: Q-210406
Contact: Dan Morgan

EagleView Rep: Joseph Wilson 
Phone Number: (704) 649-2119 
Email: joe.wilson@eagleview.com
Date: 6/4/2021

FY 2022
Payment Imagery Products Payment Amount Payment Due Subtotal

2 of 2 Winter 2021 3in and 6in Ortho/Oblique Imagery $91,895.36 1 year after delivery $91,895.36
1 of 2 Winter 2022 6in Ortho-only Imagery $28,980.00 Initial delivery $28,980.00

FY 2022
TOTAL:

$120,875.36

Page 1 of 1

2

61

Item 2.



Invoice No. MANMN0000758

Description

BEAUFORT COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

100 RIBAUT RD

BEAUFORT, SC 29901-1228

United States

Date

Due Date

Unit Price AmountQuantityItem No

4/26/2021

Ship To

7/1/2021

4007000Customer No.

Page 1 of 1

CurrencyPayment TermsPurchase Order

Bill To

BEAUFORT COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 
ERIC GREENWAY ADMIN/DAN MORGAN IT 
100 RIBAUT RD

BEAUFORT, SC 29901-1228

United States

Contract/Project Number

JULY21-JUNE22 HARRIS-US$Start of Maint Period

AUMTAX-S Aumentum Tax System Support: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  128,794.00  128,794.00 

AUMAA-S Aumentum Assmt Admin Spt-Included: July 2021 to June 

2022

 1.00  0.00  0.00 

AUMPP-S Aumentum Personal Prop Admin Spt-Included: July 2021 to 

June 2022

 1.00  0.00  0.00 

AUMRECEE-S Aumentum Records Admin Enterprise Spt-Included: July 

2021 to June 2022

 1.00  0.00  0.00 

PAPP-S ProVal Plus Support: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  44,107.00  44,107.00 

GEOANALYST-S GeoAnalyst Support: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  8,805.00  8,805.00 

PROPERTYMAX-S Valuation eGOV System Spt: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  10,004.00  10,004.00 

PROPERTYMAX-DATA-S PropertyMax Data Extract Spt: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  6,670.00  6,670.00 

WEBHOSTPROPERTY-S Webhosting of Property Sites: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  5,558.00  5,558.00 

COLLECTMAX-S TAX eGov System Spt: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  10,004.00  10,004.00 

COLLECTMAX-DATA-S CollectMax Data Extract Support: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  6,670.00  6,670.00 

WEBHOSTCOLLECT-S Tax eGov Hosting Support: July 2021 to June 2022  1.00  5,484.00  5,484.00 

Thank you for your business!

Subtotal

Taxes

Total

 226,096.00 

 241,922.72 

 15,826.72 
Remit To:

Aumentum Technologies, 

a division of Manatron, Inc.

PO Box 74008484

Chicago, Il 60674-8484

Invoice Questions? Please call or email Renee Fuller at 866-471-2900 ext. 277723 or 

ar_aumentum@harriscomputer.com

 0.00 Misc

 0.00 Freight

4

62

Item 2.



5

63

Item 2.



64

Item 2.



65

Item 2.



66

Item 2.



67

Item 2.



68

Item 2.



69

Item 2.



70

Item 2.



71

Item 2.



72

Item 2.



73

Item 2.



74

Item 2.



75

Item 2.



76

Item 2.



77

Item 2.



78

Item 2.



79

Item 2.



80

Item 2.



81

Item 2.



82

Item 2.



83

Item 2.



84

Item 2.



85

Item 2.



86

Item 2.



87

Item 2.



88

Item 2.



89

Item 2.



90

Item 2.



91

Item 2.



92

Item 2.



93

Item 2.



94

Item 2.



95

Item 2.



96

Item 2.



97

Item 2.



Beaufort County SC - Upgrade to 24TB Devices
Reference: 20210212-091606734

Quote created: February 12, 2021

Quote expires: July 31, 2021

Quote created by: Stacy Cobb

Business Development

stacy@thinkgard.com

+1 (205) 515-4593

Comments from Stacy Cobb

This quote covers upgrading the 3 18TB backup appliances with the 24TB appliances in their place. The monthly charges

currently paid for the 18TB appliances will be superceeded by this new amount. Currently the 18TB backup appliances cost

you $2598 each and the new 24 TB boxes will be 2941.50 (We discount these $600 a mo). Total difference will be an increase

of $1030.50/month. We are able to take advantage of our trade in policy on the 18Tb devices which will save you $6,948.00

on each with the total cost of three brand new 24TB boxes for $15,399.99.

Products & Services

Item & Description Quantity Unit Price Total

S4-E24
24TB Enterprise Appliance 

- CPU: 2x Xeon
- RAM: 256GB
- Array: RAID 6
- NICs: 2x10GbE OS
- Drive: 240GB SSD
- Transfer Drive: 1x1TB
- Chassis: 2U

3 $12,081.33 $15,399.99

after $20,844.00 discount

Beaufort County SC

100 Ribaut Road, PO Drawer 1228

Beaufort, SC 29902

Jonathan Brown

IT Sys Management

jonathanb@bcgov.net

(843)-255-7083

Patrick Hill

IT Systems Dept. Director

phill@bcgov.net

(843)-255-7044

6

98

Item 2.



DataGard TBR - E24
Enterprise DataGard - 24TB Monthly Services  

Services Included in Monthly Rate  

* 1 Year Time Based Retention (TBR)  
* Local Backups - (1 hour – 24 hours)  
* Backup replication - 2 bicoastal sites   
* Support to keep backups running   
* Assist in file and server recovery  
* On Call Troubling Shooting Service  
* Full technical DR documentation  
* Annual cloud test  
* 30 days of off-site virtualization   
  after which a fee of $200.00 per 24 hours will 
apply.

3 $37,698.00 / year $105,894.00 / year

after $7,200.00 discount

Implementation Services - Enterprise
Implementation Services - Enterprise

1 $999.00 $249.00

after $750.00 discount

Subtotals

Annual subtotal $105,894.00

after $7,200.00 discount

One-time subtotal $15,648.99

after $21,594.00 discount

Total $121,542.99

Purchase Terms

Terms & Conditions
By signing this Quote/Proposal, you are agreeing to the terms and conditions for the DataGard 3-Year Agreement here:

https://www.thinkgard.com/terms-conditions-datagard-3-year/. You will be able to download a printable copy of the terms.

Questions? Contact me

Stacy Cobb

Business Development

stacy@thinkgard.com
99

Item 2.

https://www.thinkgard.com/terms-conditions-datagard-3-year/


+1 (205) 515-4593

ThinkGard LLC

160 Yeager Pkwy, Suite 200

Pelham, AL 35124

United States

Print quoteDownload quote

100

Item 2.



NWN Corporation Page 1 of 2 6/10/2021 11:03 AM

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

2520 Whitehall Park Dr #250

Charlotte, NC 28273

860.606.2831
OP-16868/Q-17176

Signature:
Tom Collins
704-496-6933 Printed:

Quote #: 241726193 SC Cisco 4400016104 CUSTOMER PRICE Date:
Quote Name: Beaufort County Smartnet Renewal $41,590.47
Quote Date: 18-Mar-21/refreshed 21-May-21 $32,881.91 PO#:
Price Protection Ends: 30-Jun-21 $74,472.38

Serial Number/Quantity Product Number Product Description
Last Date of
Support Contract Level Svc Lvl Descr. Contract Number Begin Date End Date Install Site ID Install Site Name Site Address Line 1 Site City State ZIP Customer Price

FGE20220ANJ C1-C6807XL-S2T-BUN Chassis+Fan Tray+ Sup2T+2xPower Supply; IP Services ONLY 10/31/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 419721942 BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 104 RIBAUT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29901 $4,549.36
FGE200401LK C1-C6807XL-S2T-BUN Chassis+Fan Tray+ Sup2T+2xPower Supply; IP Services ONLY 10/31/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $4,549.36
FDO20231JD3 C1-N9K-C9372PX-E ^^Cisco ONE Nexus 9300 with 48p 10G SFP+ and 6p 40G QSFP+ 10/31/2023 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $997.12
FDO202407LY C1-N9KC9372PXE-BUN ^^Cisco ONE Nexus 9372PX-E bundle PID 10/31/2023 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $997.12
FDO2020013M C1-N9KC9372PXE-BUN ^^Cisco ONE Nexus 9372PX-E bundle PID 10/31/2023 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $997.12
FDO2032E1P4 C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2032E1UH C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2032Q0WX C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2032Q10C C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E1G0 C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E1G2 C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E0TX C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E1FV C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E1FY C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2032E1T2 C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E1G4 C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2028E1FW C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FDO2302F0AZ C1-WS3650-48PQ/K9 Cisco One Catalyst 3650 48 Port PoE 4x10G Uplink 10/31/2026 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 202674665 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001318375 BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY 311 SCOTT ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $612.54
FCW2145L037 C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1010963751 BEAUFORT COUNTY 309 MILL POND RD BLUFFTON SC 29910-0000 $591.93
FCW2124G02H C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1010963751 BEAUFORT COUNTY 309 MILL POND RD BLUFFTON SC 29910-0000 $591.93
FOC2224Q090 C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $591.93
FOC2224Z07B C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $591.93
FOC2224Z077 C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $591.93
FOC2224Z072 C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $591.93
FOC2224Z07A C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $591.93
FOC2224Z07D C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $591.93
CAT2213L0VN C9500-48Y4C-A Catalyst 9500 48-port x 1/10/25G + 4-port 40/100G, Advantage SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1017720427 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-0000 $1,387.44
FJC2050L3CZ CISCO1921-T1SEC/K9 ^Cisco 1921 T1 Bundle incl. HWIC-1DSU-T1,256F/512D, SEC Lic 9/30/2023 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2001232199 BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE 2001 DUKE ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $72.16
FTX1723AHTX CISCO3925/K9 ^Cisco 3925 w/SPE100(3GE,4EHWIC,4DSP,2SM,256MBCF,1GBDRAM,IPB) 12/31/2022 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $1,612.94
FTX1723AHTQ CISCO3925/K9 ^Cisco 3925 w/SPE100(3GE,4EHWIC,4DSP,2SM,256MBCF,1GBDRAM,IPB) 12/31/2022 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $1,612.94
FJC2209D087 ISR4431/K9 Cisco ISR 4431 (4GE,3NIM,8G FLASH,4G DRAM,IPB) SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $1,109.50

1530647582 L-CPS-MS-SW7= EDelivery License for one Media Server on MSP SAS Software Applicatio 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $139.40
1530647580 L-CPS-OM-SW7= EDelivery License for one Operations Manager On MSP SAS Software Applicatio 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $871.66

5270592099/qty 125 LIC-CT5520-1A Cisco 5520 Wireless Controller 1 AP Adder License ECMU SWSS 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1017720427 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-0000 $2,665.00
FOC2025R1R1 N2348TQ-FA-BUN Standard airflow pack: N2K-C2348TQ, 2AC PS, 3 Fan 9/30/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $377.38
FOC2026R1R3 N2348TQ-FA-BUN Standard airflow pack: N2K-C2348TQ, 2AC PS, 3 Fan 9/30/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $377.38
FOC2026R1UQ N2348TQ-FA-BUN Standard airflow pack: N2K-C2348TQ, 2AC PS, 3 Fan 9/30/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $377.38
FOC2026R1TB N2348TQ-FA-BUN Standard airflow pack: N2K-C2348TQ, 2AC PS, 3 Fan 9/30/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $377.38
FOC2026R1VH N2348TQ-FA-BUN Standard airflow pack: N2K-C2348TQ, 2AC PS, 3 Fan 9/30/2025 SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $377.38

1816895583 N93-LAN1K9 LAN Enterprise License for Nexus 9300 Platform ECMU SWSS 201800015 6/16/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $410.85
1816895542 N93-LAN1K9 LAN Enterprise License for Nexus 9300 Platform ECMU SWSS 201800015 6/16/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $410.85
1817052186 N93-LAN1K9 LAN Enterprise License for Nexus 9300 Platform ECMU SWSS 201800015 6/16/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $410.85
1816895488 N93-SERVICES1K9 Nexus 9300 Network Services (ITD, IP Media Fabric) ECMU SWSS 201800015 6/16/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $179.75
1816895595 N93-SERVICES1K9 Nexus 9300 Network Services (ITD, IP Media Fabric) ECMU SWSS 201800015 6/16/2021 7/1/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $179.75
1817052194 N93-SERVICES1K9 Nexus 9300 Network Services (ITD, IP Media Fabric) ECMU SWSS 201800015 6/16/2021 7/1/2022 2000256152 BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 100 RIBAULT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29902-0000 $179.75

FCW2102A55T WS-C2960X-24PSQ-L Catalyst 2960-X 24 GigE PoE 110W, 2xSFP + 2x1GBT, LAN Base SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1003318998 BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFI 2001 DUKE ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $182.23
FOC2101Z43S WS-C3850-48XS-S Cisco Catalyst 3850 48 Port 10G Fiber Switch IP Base SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1003568373 BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFIC 2001 DUKE ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $1,744.99
FOC2101Z39H WS-C3850-48XS-S Cisco Catalyst 3850 48 Port 10G Fiber Switch IP Base SNT SNTC 8X5XNBD 201800015 7/2/2021 7/1/2022 1003568373 BEAUFORT COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFIC 2001 DUKE ST BEAUFORT SC 29902 $1,744.99
DNA Subscriptions

5483458140 C6880-DNAC1A DNAC1 Advantage Term C6880 SSTC DNAC1 Advantage T 201800015 8/14/2021 8/13/2022 419721942 BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 104 RIBAUT ROAD BEAUFORT SC 29901 $6,541.82
5483458161 C6880-DNAC1A DNAC1 Advantage Term C6880 SSTC DNAC1 Advantage T 201800015 8/14/2021 8/13/2022 2001222656 BEAUFORT COUNTY PO BOX 1228 BEAUFORT SC 29901 $6,541.82

C9300-DNA-A-48= C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses Spare SSTC Software Subscriptio 201608252 9/9/2021 9/8/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $1,645.74
C9300-DNA-A-48= C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses Spare SSTC Software Subscriptio 201608252 9/9/2021 9/8/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAGBEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $1,645.74

Smartnet Summary
Smartnet Renewal

Total
 DNA Subscriptions

7

101

Item 2.



NWN Corporation Page 2 of 2 6/10/2021 11:03 AM

71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P
C9300-DNA-A-48= C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses Spare SSTC Software Subscriptio 201608252 9/9/2021 9/8/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAG  BEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $1,645.74
C9300-DNA-A-48= C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses Spare SSTC Software Subscriptio 201608252 9/9/2021 9/8/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAG  BEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $1,645.74
C9300-DNA-A-48= C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses Spare SSTC Software Subscriptio 201608252 9/9/2021 9/8/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAG  BEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $1,645.74

5483468598 C9300-DNA-A-48= C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses Spare SSTC Software Subscriptio 201608252 9/9/2021 9/8/2022 1015489607 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAG  BEAUFORT SC 29906-4291 $1,645.74
5483468793 C9300-DNA-P-48 C9300 48-Port DNA-Premier License SSTC C9300 48-Port DNA-  201100531 1/19/2022 1/18/2023 1010963751 BEAUFORT COUNTY 309 MILL POND RD BLUFFTON SC 29910-0000 $1,884.38
5246579011 C9300-DNA-P-48 C9300 48-Port DNA-Premier License SSTC C9300 48-Port DNA-  201100531 1/19/2022 1/18/2023 1010963751 BEAUFORT COUNTY 309 MILL POND RD BLUFFTON SC 29910-0000 $1,884.38

C9500-DNA-48Y4C-A= C9500 DNA Spare License SSTC Software Subscriptio 201599375 9/4/2021 9/3/2022 1017720427 BEAUFORT COUNTY MANAGEMENT 106 INDUSTRIAL VILLAG  BEAUFORT SC 29906-0000 $5,513.23
5483468600 CAT-DNA-P-ADD Catalyst DNA Premier Add-On, Term Licenses SSTC Catalyst DNA Premie    201100531 1/19/2022 1/18/2023 1010963751 BEAUFORT COUNTY 309 MILL POND RD BLUFFTON SC 29910-0000 $320.92
5483468795 CAT-DNA-P-ADD Catalyst DNA Premier Add-On, Term Licenses SSTC Catalyst DNA Premie    201100531 1/19/2022 1/18/2023 1010963751 BEAUFORT COUNTY 309 MILL POND RD BLUFFTON SC 29910-0000 $320.92

Note:

1.) Quote valid for 30 days unless revised. CISCO 30 DAY RENEWAL POLICY
2.) Please review for accuracy and notify NWN of any changes, moves, adds, or deletes. Cisco has a  Renewal Policy which states SMARTnet Coverage must be renewed during the first 30 days following the coverage "due date" in order
3.) Sales tax not included. to maintain service entitlement.
4.) PO required before contract purchase. Products that are not covered by a SMARTnet Contract on the 31st day following the renewal due date will fall off contract and be considered uncovered.
5.) NWN will invoice upon shipment of product from OEM. Uncovered product will be subject to a minimum charge of $800/hour for TAC Service.
6.) Payment term is Net 30 days. In addition, uncovered product will not qualify for Advance Replacement nor IOS Updates.

102

Item 2.



103

Item 2.



104

Item 2.



105

Item 2.



106

Item 2.



107

Item 2.



108

Item 2.



*025$333470%1-*

Invoice No Date Page

1 of 1

Ship To:Bill To:

Currency Terms Due Date

USD

Beaufort County

Attn: Finance Department

P.O. Drawer 1228

Beaufort, SC 29901-1228

Invoice

PO Number

NET30

Remittance:

 144338 

Ord No

025-333470

Tyler Technologies, Inc.

(FEIN 75-2303920)

P.O. Box 203556

Dallas, TX 75320-3556

Questions:
Tyler Technologies - Local Government

Phone:     1-800-772-2260 Press 2, then 2

Email:     ar@tylertech.com

 

Beaufort County

Attn: Finance Department

P.O. Drawer 1228

Beaufort, SC 29901-1228

Cust No.-BillTo-ShipTo

1033 - MAIN - MAIN

06/01/2021

07/01/2021

Description Units Rate Extended PriceDate

Contract No.: BEAUFORT COUNTY, SC

EnerGov - VirtualPay - Annual SaaS Fees - Included at No Cost  1  0.00  0.00 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - Licensing & Regulatory Suite (LRM) - Annual SaaS Fees  1  22,358.70  22,358.70 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - Permitting & Land Management (PLM) - Annual SaaS Fees  1  73,770.48  73,770.48 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - Citizen Self Service - Permitting & Land Mgmt (PLM) - Annual SaaS Fees  1  22,050.00  22,050.00 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - eReviews - Annual SaaS Fees  1  31,972.50  31,972.50 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - GIS - Annual SaaS Fees - Included at No Cost  1  0.00  0.00 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - IG Workforce Apps - Annual SaaS Fees  1  12,965.40  12,965.40 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - My GovPay - Annual SaaS Fees - Included at No Cost  1  0.00  0.00 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - Report Toolkit - Annual SaaS Fees - Included at No Cost  1  0.00  0.00 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

EnerGov - Standard Technical Support - Annual SaaS Fees - Included at No Cost  1  0.00  0.00 

Maintenance: Start: 01/Jul/2021,  End: 30/Jun/2022

**ATTENTION**

Order your checks and forms from

Tyler Business Forms at 877-749-2090 or 

tylerbusinessforms.com to guarantee

 100% compliance with your software.

Subtotal

Invoice Total

Sales Tax

 163,117.08 

 0.00 

 163,117.08 

12

109

Item 2.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Resolution revising Resolution 2020/26 reflecting the appropriate amount of CDBG and local funding 
containing the required cost savings language for the Detour Road Sidewalk Extension Project. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering  

(5 min) 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Resolution 2020/26 authorized the County Administrator to make application to the South Carolina 
Department of Commerce, Grants Administration for Community Enrichment Funds. Upon grant approval, 
the Department of Commerce requires a revised Resolution reflecting the project funding budget. 

Public Facilities Committee approved June 21, 2021 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Detour Road Sidewalk Extension has an overall cost of $461,868. To supplement the cost of this project, 
Beaufort County received a Community Development Block Grant for $200,000. This grant will be matched 
with $61,868 from the Road Use Fees and $250,000 from the Seabrook Solar Farm donation. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

This grant will be matched with $61,868 from the Road Use Fees (TAG Fees) and $250,000 from the Seabrook 
Solar Farm donation. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Resolution revising Resolution 2020/26 reflecting the appropriate amount of 
CDBG and local funding containing the required cost savings language for the Detour Road Sidewalk 
Extension Project. 

 

 

110

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

WHEREAS, there is a need to address quality of life issues for Beaufort County, and 

addressing the concerns and issues of low-to-moderate income (LMI) residents is a priority for 

the County, and pedestrian pathways have been identified as a priority community need for 

Beaufort County; and   

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County has taken steps to address this need by adopting 

Resolution 2020/26 authorizing the Interim County Administrator, Eric Greenway, to make 

application to the South Carolina Department of Commerce, Grants Administration for 

Community Enrichment Funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County was awarded a Special Projects Grant from the 

Community Development Block Grant Program in the amount of $200,000 for the Detour Road 

Sidewalk Extension Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, The Department of Commerce Grants Administration requires a revised 

Resolution reflecting the appropriate amount of CDBG and local funding containing the required 

cost savings language; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County is to commit funds in the amount of $261,868 to meet the 

projected project budget; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County commits to sharing cost savings on a pro rata basis based 

on the application budget.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council of Beaufort County, 

South Carolina, that Beaufort County commits funds in the amount of $261,868 and commits to 

sharing cost savings on a pro rata basis for the Detour Road Sidewalk Extension Project. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED, THIS ___ DAY OF ___________________, 2020. 

 

 

 

               

        Joe Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________      

Clerk to Council 
 

111

Item 3.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A Resolution establishing right of way acquisition policies associated with the implementation of 2018 One 
Cent Sales Tax Referendum projects approved by voters November 6, 2018. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering  

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On November 18, 2019, County Council adopted Resolution 2019-44 authorizing the acquisition of all right of 
ways needed by way of negotiations by agents or administrators of Beaufort County for the 2018 One Cent 
Sales Tax Program. 

Public Facilities Committee approved June 21, 2021 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

To expedite the acquisition process necessary for project completion, exceptions to the current property 

purchasing standards need to be addressed as the program is governed by an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) and shall comply with the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-
646), as amended, and S.C. Code of Laws Titles 57 and 28, as amended. The Resolution authorizes 
delegate negotiating authority as follows: 

1. County Administrator up to $500,000 
2. Assistant County Administrator – Engineering up to $250,000 
3. Director of Transportation Engineering up to $100,000 
4. Right of Way Manager up to $50,000 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Resolution establishing right of way acquisition policies associated with the 
implementation of 2018 One Cent Sales Tax Referendum projects approved by voters November 6, 2018. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Resolution establishing right of way acquisition policies associated with the 
implementation of 2018 One Cent Sales Tax Referendum projects approved by voters November 6, 2018. 

 

 
112

Item 4.



 
1 

RESOLUTION 2021/_______ 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION POLICIES 

ASSOCIATED WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 2018 ONE CENT SALES TAX 

REFERENDUM PROJECTS APPROVED BY VOTERS NOVEMBER 6, 2018  

 

 WHEREAS, , Beaufort County Council adopted an Ordinance on November 13, 2017 to 

impose a One Percent (1 %) Transportation Sales and Use Tax for not more than four (4) years, if 

approved by referendum, to authorize the issue of General Obligation Bonds not to exceed One 

Hundred Twenty Million Dollars ($120,000,000) to fund Transportation-related projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, a Referendum to approve the expenditure of One Hundred Twenty Million 

Dollars ($120,000,000) by implementation of a One Percent (1%) Sales Tax was held on 

November 6, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, County Council adopted Resolution 2019/44 attached as Exhibit “A” 

authorized the acquisition of all right of ways needed by way of negotiations by agents or 

administrators of Beaufort County and/or by way of eminent domain of such right of ways needed 

to complete projects listed on attached Exhibit “A” ; and 

 

WHEREAS, County Council further authorized, as necessary, such acquisitions to include 

highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass transit systems, green belts and other transportation related 

project facilities, including, but not limited to, drainage facilities relating to the highways, roads, 

streets, bridges and other transportation related projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, in an effort to expedite the acquisition process necessary for project 

completion, exceptions to the current property purchasing standards need to be addressed as the 

program is governed by an Intergovernmental Agreement with South Carolina Department of 

Transportation (SCDOT) and shall comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 

Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-646), as amended, and S.C. Code of 

Laws Titles 57 and 28, as amended; and  

 

WHEREAS, in an effort to expedite projects to the construction stage, the County 

Administrator, currently authorized to approve payments not to exceed $50,000, be authorized to 

approve right of way (ROW) transactions up to $500,000 and delegate negotiating authority to the 

acquisition team as follows: 

 

1. Assistant County Administrator - Engineering up to $250,000 

2. Director of Transportation Engineering up to $100,000  

3. Right of Way Manager up to $50,000 

 

  

113

Item 4.



 
2 

 WHEREAS, County Council shall approve all payments exceeding $500,000 and shall 

approve eminent domain proceedings; and 

 

WHEREAS, to expedite payment for the right of way acquisition process, the County 

waives the requirement to issue purchase orders over $1,500 and will amend the Beaufort County 

Procurement Code; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED Beaufort County Council hereby establishes 

the right of way acquisition policies and approval authorities for the 2018 One Cent Transportation 

Sales Tax Referendum program as set forth above.  

 

 

ADOPTED this ____ day of __________, 2021. 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 
 

114

Item 4.



RESOLUTION 2019 / 44 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council adopted an Ordinance on November 13, 2017 to impose a 

One Percent (1 %) Transportation Sales and Use Tax for not more than four ( 4) years, if approved by 

referendum, to authorize the issue of General Obligation Bonds not to exceed One Hundred Twenty 

Million Dollars ($120,000,000) to fund Transportation-related projects; and 

WHEREAS, a Referendum to approve the expenditure of One Hundred Twenty Million Dollars 

($120,000,000) by implementation of a One Percent (1 %) Sales Tax was held on November 6, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the voters of Beaufort County voted to approve implementing the one (I%) percent 

sales tax by a margin of nearly fifty-eight (58%) percent; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to acquire right-of-ways from private landowners for the purpose of 

implementing the public projects hereinafter enumerated which were approved by the citizens of Beaufort 

County; and 

WHEREAS, all acquisitions of such right-of-ways will conform to the standards approved by 

Beaufort County, South Carolina Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration; 

and 

WHEREAS, the construction of all projects is vital to the health and safety of the residents, 

citizens and tourists in Beaufort County, including, but not limited to, evacuation routes in the event of 

hurricanes; and 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County will conduct 2 public meetings on each of the roadway and 

pathway projects in order to disseminate project information and obtain community feedback, and; 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County staff will update the Public Facilities Committee on a quarterly 

basis regarding the status of ongoing capital projects, and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that County Council authorizes the 

acquisition of all right-of-ways needed by way of negotiations by agents or administrators of Beaufort 

County and/or by way of eminent domain of such right-of-ways needed to complete the following 

projects: 

1. Hilton Head Island - US 278 Corridor Traffic Improvements

2. Lady's Island Corridor Traffic Improvements

3. Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways - Safe Routes to School:

a. Burnt Church Road, Ulmer Road, and Shad Road

b. Laurel Bay Road Pathway Widening

c. Bluffton Parkway Phase I

d. Joe Frazier Road

e. Meridian Road

f. Alljoy Road

g. Salem Road, Old Salem Road, and Burnt Hill Road

h. Middle Road

1. Stuart Point

J. Broad Rover Boulevard and Riley Road

k. Broad River Drive

I. Lake Point Drive and Old Miller Road Pathway Connection

Exhibit "A"

115

Item 4.



116

Item 4.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

Public Facilities Committee’s Recommendation for FY22 Contract Renewal Approvals over $100,000 from 
Various Departments to County Council 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council Meeting, June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

David L. Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 

Purchasing Director, 5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

To improve our process for renewing annual contract renewals a summary sheet (see the attached excel 
sheet) is provided for Council’s review and approval.  The summary sheet provides the vendor name, purpose, 
requesting department, account name and number, prior and current contract cost, term, and notes.  The 
Department Head responsible for the contract or their representative will be available for questions during the 
Council meeting. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Cost increases in some of the contracts are due COVID-19, additions to services and CPI adjustments. See the 
notes section on the attached summary sheet for each contract.  Department backup support is also included 
and numbered to match the contract item number on the contract list. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

See the attached Excel Summary Sheet covering contracts A-J. Accounts used, FY21 and the new FY 22 cost are 
included on the attached Excel Summary Sheet. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The Public Facilities Committee recommends to County Council, approval of the contract renewals (Items A-J) 
as stated in the attached summary. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Approve or Deny the contract renewals.  

117

Item 5.



 

Public Facilities Committee’s approved FY22 Contract Renewals over $100,000 for County 
Council Approval 

 

A. WASTE MANAGEMENT HICKORY HILL LANDFILL - SOLID WASTE - $3,000,000  

B. REPUBLIC WASTE SERVICES - SOLID WASTE HAULING - $2,060,000  

C. OAKWOOD LANDFILL WASTE MANAGEMENT RIDGELAND - DISPOSAL OF CLASS II - $377,000  

D. SOUTH COAST RESOURCES INC - YARD WASTE RECYCLING - $248,000 

 E. ECOFLO - HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE - $183,700  

F. DOLPHIN SHARED MANAGEMENT - DAUFUSKIE TRANSFER SOLID WASTE - $145,000  

G. POWERHOUSE - ELECTRONIC WASTE - $110,000 

H. C2G - WASTE TIRE HAULING - $108,000  

I.  A&B CLEANING SERVICES INC. - CLEANING FOR COUNTY FACILITIES - $630,000 

J. TETRA TECH INC - STORM DEBRIS REMOVAL ETC. - ONLY WILL COST IF UTILIZED 

118

Item 5.



Vendor Purpose Department Account  FY21 Cost  FY22 Cost 
Term 

(Beg/End)

1 C2G Waste tire hauling/recycling Solid Waste 23450011-51160 $108,000 $108,000.00
6/30/2019

 thru 
6/30/2023

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

 2 Powerhouse Electronices Waste Solid Waste 10001340-51164 $110,000 $110,000
11/01/2019 

Thru 
10/31/2024

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

 3
Dolphin Shared 
Management

Daufuskie Transfer Solid 
Waste

Solid Waste 10001340-51166 $132,096 $145,000
09/01/18       

Thru       
06/30/28

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

4 ECOFLO
Household Hazardous 

Waste Services
Solid Waste 10001340-51160 $183,700 $183,700

03/25/2020   
Thru   

06/30/2023 

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

5 South Coast 
Resources, Inc.

Yard waste recycling services Solid Waste 10001340-51166 $234,000 $248,000
6/30/2019

 thru 
6/30/2023

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

 6

Oakwood Landfill
Waste 

Management
Ridgeland, South 

Carolina

Disposal of Class II Waste Solid Waste 10001340-51166 $355,000 $377,000
6/30/2018

 thru 
6/30/2023

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

7 Republic Waste 
Services

Solid Waste Hauling Solid Waste 10001340-51165 $2,000,000 $2,060,000
6/30/2018

 thru 
6/30/2022

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

 8

Waste 
Management 
Hickory Hill 

Landfill

Solid Waste Solid Waste 10001340-51166 $2,600,000 $3,000,000
07/15/15       

Thru       
06/30/25

Cindy 
Carter

NOTES

9 Tetra Tech Inc.

Storm Debris Removal, 
Debris Management, Site 

Operation and Disosak 
Services for Beaufort County

Disaster 
Recovery

No cost due to no 
storms

Only will cost if utilized 
after storm event. Cost 

sheet attached

09/10/2018 
Thru 

09/09/2023

Pamela 
Cobb

NOTES

 10 A&B Cleaning 
Services Inc.

Cleaning of County Facilities
Facility 

Management
10001310-51210 $551,196.00 $630,000.00

7/1/2021
 thru 

6/30/2022

Mark 
Roseneau

NOTES

CPI and population increase anticipated

CPI and population increase anticipated

CPI and population increase anticipated

Contractor for hurricane evnt. There is no cost for this contract unless services are utilized. Some costs are reimbursed by the Federal Government. 
The hauling prices are fixed from an RFP process

4 additional facilitis (42,000 sf) in FY 22 and 4% increase from Contractor because of increase in high touch cleaning, high frequency wipe down and 
fogging due to Covid 19. Explanation attached.

This is a tire grant fund. Revenues provided from SC Department of Revenue. Costs for FY21 currently $72,194 through 10 months. Final Estimate 
Pending

No change

CPI and barge increase for FY22 

No change

CPI and population increase anticipated

*Note - The contract list below is not in the same order as the list on the previous page

119

Item 5.



3

120

Item 5.



From: Carter, Cindy
To: Moyer, Victoria
Subject: FW: FY "22 Daufuskie Transfer Station Services
Date: Thursday, June 3, 2021 11:38:11 AM
Attachments: 20210224130659 (1).pdf

Here is the note from Dolphin for backup:

From: Casey Scott <williamcscott123@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 4, 2021 8:40 AM
To: Carter, Cindy <ccarter@bcgov.net>
Subject: FY '22 Daufuskie Transfer Station Services

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Please report any suspicious attachments, links, or requests for
sensitive information to the Beaufort County IT Division at helpdesk@bcgov.net or to
843-255-7000.

Hi Cindy, 

As mentioned last week, we've experienced a pretty significant jump in the Daufuskie barge
rates from $2.65/sqft to $3.20/sqft (letter from barging company attached). Averaging one
compactor per 2 weeks and one open-top dumpster every 3 weeks, this equates to approx 42
County-related barge trips per year, or in other words, a $338.8/month barging related
increase. 

Our CPI increase for the year is 5.252% (link to BLS website below). Combined with the
above, this equals $11,924.64/month for the upcoming fiscal year. 

https://data.bls.gov/timeseries/CUUR0350SA0?
amp%253bdata_tool=XGtable&output_view=data&include_graphs=true

Thanks and please let me know if you have any questions, 

Casey Scott
843.422.8226

121

Item 5.



9

122

Item 5.



123

Item 5.



124

Item 5.



125

Item 5.



126

Item 5.



127

Item 5.



Estimated Hourly Extension Estimated Hourly Extension
Debris Monitoring Positions Hours $ Rate col. (a)*(b) Hours $ Rate col. (d)*(e)

(a) (b) © (d) (e) (g)
Project Manager 840               $59.00 49,560$          840                $59.00 49,560$          
Operation Managers 1,680           $55.00 92,400$          1,680             $55.00 92,400$          
Field Supervisors 2,880           $42.00 120,960$        2,880             $42.00 120,960$        
GIS Analyst 360               $55.00 19,800$          360                $55.00 19,800$          
Environmental Specialists 240               $55.00 13,200$          240                $55.00 13,200$          
Billing/Invoicing/Data Managers 600               $55.00 33,000$          500                $55.00 27,500$          
Project Coordinators 1,440           $32.00 46,080$          1,100             $32.00 35,200$          
Load Ticket Data Entry Clerks 960               $32.00 30,720$          - $ -   
Collection Crew Monitors 21,600         $35.00 756,000$        21,600          $35.00 756,000$        
Tower Monitors 2,160           $35.00 75,600$          2,160             $35.00 75,600$          
Residential Drop-off Monitors 720               $35.00 25,200$          720                $35.00 25,200$          
Automated Ticketing Specialists 300                $35.00 10,500$          
Grand Total 33,480         1,262,520$    32,380          1,225,920$    

Estimated Hourly Extension
Grant Management Consulting Positions Hours $ Rate col. (a)*(b)

(a) (b) ©
Senior Grant Management Consultant 40 $155.00 $6,200.00
Grant Management Consultant 60 $125.00 $7,500.00
Administrative Assistant 20 $45.00 $900.00
Grand Total 120 -$         $14,600.00

Estimated Hourly Extension
Emergency Management Consulting Positions Hours $ Rate col. (a)*(b)

(a) (b) ©
Senior Planner 40 $125.00 $5,000.00
Planner 20 $85.00 $1,700.00
Grand Total 60 -$         $6,700.00

Paper-Based Ticketing Automated Ticketing

EXHIBIT B

128

Item 5.



August 11, 2020 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
2301 Lucien Way 
Suite 120 
Maitland, FL  32751 

Re: Contract for Disaster Debris Management & Financial Recovery Services for Beaufort County 

Contract Number: RFP 071217 

It is a great pleasure to inform you that Beaufort County wishes to renew the above-mentioned contract in 
accordance with the original contract dated September 10, 2018. The contract renewal period will 
commence September 10, 2020 and extend through September 9, 2021. This is a one-year contract with 4 
one-year extensions. 

Please sign below and kindly return this signed document as well as an updated Certificate of Insurance at 
your earliest convenience. 

We look forward to your continued success during the contract period ahead. Please contact Victoria 
Moyer at 843-255-2295 or victoria.moyer@bcgov.net if you have any questions. 

Regards, 

Dave Thomas 
Dave Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 
Purchasing Director, Beaufort County 

The signature below authorizes the renewal of the aforementioned Contract for an additional 2 (two) year terms 
pursuant to amendments, original contract, and Terms and Conditions found in the original solicitation. 

Authorized Name and Title to Bind Contract Date 

David L. Thomas 
Purchasing Director 
843.255.2305 
dthomas@bcgov.net 

Victoria Moyer 
Contract Specialist 
843-255-2295
victoria.moyer@bcgov.net

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
BEAUFORT COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

102 Industrial Village Road, Bldg. 2—Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228 

4
AutAAAAAAAAAAAAAuAAAAAAuAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA horized Name and Titlllllllllllllllllllle te te te teee te te tte teee te te eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee o Bo B BBBBo B ooo ooooooo inii ddd Cddd ontra

ursuant to amendments, original contr

129

Item 5.



10

130

Item 5.



131

Item 6.



132

Item 6.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) – Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Class 4 Truck – Oshkosh Airport Products  

(Fiscal impact: Oshkosh Airport Products bid - $699,380.00  This project is funded 100% by an FAA AIP Grant) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA Engineering 

Jon Rembold, C.M. Airports Director (Alternate) 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Hilton Head Island Airport must provide Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) services in order to 
maintain compliance with FAA requirements as a CFR Part 139 Commercial Service Airport. The airport’s ARFF 
index now requires this additional ARFF vehicle. The expense is eligible for and has received FAA Airport 
Improvement Program grant funding. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The addition of this vehicle increases the equipment readiness of the ARFF which results in added protection 
for those who use the Hilton Head Island Airport. Due to the length of time to build this custom vehicle, funds 
will not actually be expended for approximately a year.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Oshkosh Airport Products bid - $699,380.00 

100% of cost is covered by FAA  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve the purchase of the Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Class 4 Truck from Oshkosh 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 
Motion to approve /deny the purchase of the Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Class 4 Truck from 
Oshkosh.    

133

Item 6.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

5/17/2021

Project Name:
Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) 

Vehicle
Project Number: IFB 050721HXD
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 12-May-21
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM BID   BOND
ALL 

ADDENDA
SCH OF 
VALUES

SUB 
LISTING SMBE DOCS TOTAL COST

Oshkosh X X X X None X

 Base Cost $653,626.00 
Tax $ 45,754.00
Total Price $ 699,380.00

Rosenbauer X X None X

 Base Cost $ 674,980.00 
Tax $47,248.60
Total Price $722,228.60 

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation is 
posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid results 
indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be made by 
Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

134

Item 6.



4/27/2021

05-11-2021

05-12-2021

135

Item 7.



136

Item 7.



137

Item 7.



138

Item 7.



139

Item 7.



140

Item 7.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) – Contract Change Order No. Four – Quality Enterprises USA, Inc. – Runway 3 
Extension   

(Fiscal impact:) Increase contract amount by $264,341,38 (95% is grant-reimbursable)  

5402-0011-54400 FAA HXD AIP 40 EMAS – RWY3 EXT  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA – Engineering   

Jon Rembold, C.M. Airports Director (Alternate) 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Grant #: AIP Grant 3-45-0030-40-2017             Contractor: Quality Enterprises USA, Inc.  

Scope of work: Runway 3 Extension  

Original Contract price: $6,480,111.50 

Current Contract price $8,491,255.58    Three previous “add” change orders total $1,746,802.70 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Change order is primarily related to installation of heavy-duty rubber mats at 420 airfield lights. Mats reduce 
vegetative growth at light, increasing effectiveness of the ground-mounted lights (safety), reduces 
maintenance costs and improves airport’s ability to meet stringent FAA Part 139 criteria. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Contract increase of $264,341.38     

The funding of the contract will come from account # 5402-0011-54400 (FAA HXD AIP 40 EMAS-RWY3 EXT) with 
a balance of $39,231.30. 95% of cost is covered by FAA and SCAC grants.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve Contract Change Order No. Four   

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 
Motion to approve /deny Contract Change Order No. Four     

 

141

Item 7.



 FY2021  FY2022 

 Budget 

 Proposed 

Budget 

Revenue

Admin SWU Fees 903,126      1,443,602     

Unincorp/CWI SWU Fees 6,100,193   5,453,632     

Total Revenue from SWU Fees 7,003,319   6,897,234     

Interest 112,500      101,250        

Other 11,175        20,975 

Reserve Utilization

Capital Improvement Fund 2,794,262   3,573,828     

Projected Revenue Total 9,921,256   10,593,287   

FY2021 FY2022

Administration 575,550      482,080        

Utility Activities

UA/Annual Maintenance 4,782,884   4,713,726     

UA/Drainage Enhancement 10,000        20,000 

UA/Additional Studies - 20,000 

Utility Activities Subtotal 4,792,884   4,753,726     

Regulation

UA/Control Reg 872,789      1,169,937     

UA/WQ Monitoring 120,000      170,000        

UA/Public Information/Outreach 95,000        90,000 

Regulation Subtotal 1,087,789   1,429,937     

Capital Improvement Fund

 Brewer Memorial Demo Pond 600,000      13,000 

 Factory Creek Phase I 327 - 

 Factory Creek Phase II 20,550        - 

 Salt Creek South 248,496      1,099,639     

 Shanklin Road 341,820      1,604,995     

 Mossy Oaks 205,000      - 

 Camp St. Mary 342,000      - 

 Evergreen 840,000      1,650 

 Graves/Pepper Hall 500,000      750,000        

 Rock Springs Creek 43,052        - 

 Lucy Creek (Tuxedo Park) 87,659 

Capital Improvement Fund Subtotal 3,141,245   3,556,943     

Utility Operating Fund

Capital Assets 323,788      370,600        

Efforts Total 9,921,256   10,593,287   

Efforts (Expenses)

Unaudited Projected Revenue

Proposed Budget for FY2022

Beaufort County Stormwater Utility

C/S of Management Budget (382,080),

montioring ($170K) & PE/O ($90K)

COB - $38,564

ToB - $52,658

ToHHI - $141,496

ToPR - $24,364

Unincorp BC $384,998

Additional Unincorp BC $801,522

Interest on County investments 

allocated to SW

SW Permits & Fines

Personnel

SW Manager; Business Mngr; GIS/MS4 Data Mngr; Admin 

Tech - .5 FTE;Asst SW Mngr - .2 FTE

$100K Professional Services for litigation of delinquent SW 

fees (not included in the portion of the admin budget that is 

cost-shared with the municipalities.)

Personnel

Superintendent; Admin Superintendent; (2) Foremen; 

(39) crew & support; Asst SW Mngr - .4 FTE

Professional Services

$227K - Huspah Creek

$15K - Survey

$15K - Engineering Services

$5K - Wetland delineation

Non-Professional Services

$350K -Tree Removal (Lake Linden, Royal Pines, &

Palmetto Ridge), Bluffton Flyover construction, and

contingency

Other

$188K - Interest on bond

$50K - Legal services for easements & land

acquisition

Contingency

Contingency

Personnel

(4) Inspectors (SW Plan Reviewer/Inspector- not

funded in FY22); (2) Infrastruc Inspec Tech; Admin

Tech- .5 FTE;  Asst SW Mngr - .4 FTE

Professional Services

$500K - MS4 Consultant

$170K - USCB Lab

$90K - Carolina Clear

Closeout process

ROW acquisition and construction

ROW acquisition and construction

Removed from CIP list

Finalize grant requirements

County share for design & constructuion per the JDA

Removed from CIP list

Regulatory

$33.6K - SUV for Asst SW Mngr

$100K - WQ Monitoring (Insitu) Equip

Infrastructure

$121K - Lowboy Tractor

$88K - Lowboy Trailer

$28K - Flatbed Trailer

CWI Fees - $776,503

Bathymetry & Permitting

142

Item 8.

kherrera
Highlight



143

Item 8.



144

Item 8.



145

Item 8.



146

Item 8.



147

Item 8.



148

Item 8.



149

Item 8.



150

Item 8.



151

Item 8.



152

Item 8.



153

Item 8.



154

Item 8.



155

Item 8.



156

Item 8.



157

Item 8.



Service Agreement between Beaufort County South Carolina and University of South 
Carolina – Beaufort for Water Quality Monitoring Services 

 

1. Governing Document 

It is the intent of the parties that this contract shall supersede any other agreements entered 
between the County and USCB regarding monitoring services. 

2. USCB 
 

a. USCB shall be responsible to utilize a SC certified laboratory to conduct the 
required analyzes if the USCB Water Quality Laboratory does not currently hold 
SC DHEC certification for that parameter (s). 
 

b. USCB shall continue to operate and manage a laboratory able to receive and analyze 
the County’s samples during normal hours of operation of 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, 
Monday through Friday.  If extenuating circumstances occur that require certain 
services, such as sample receipt, outside of normal operating hours, the County 
should inform Laboratory personnel in advance so that accommodations can be 
made.  Samples requiring analysis for BOD5, Chlorophyll-a and/or microbiology, 
must be received by the Laboratory no later than noon on Thursday. 

 
c. All analytical results will be reported within 30 days of sample receipt.  A 

preliminary report of completed results prior to 30 days can be issued to the County 
in the event of illicit discharge tracking, time sensitive projects, or when requested 
by the County and agreed upon by both parties.  Analytical results for 
microbiological parameters are typically available 48 hours after sample receipt and 
can be conveyed to the County thereafter. Analytical results will be conveyed to the 
County via email, unless otherwise requested.  Additional costs may be incurred for 
customized reporting and/or data interpretation.     

d. USCB laboratory staff will make a good faith effort to be responsive to unforeseen 
water quality needs as they arise. 

e. USCB will separately track monitoring services provided North of the Broad River 
to the City of Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal and provide the County’s 
accounting office with summary reports separating such services accordingly.   

f. USCB will submit to the County a summary of all monitoring activity conducted 
on its behalf, as well as related expenses, on January 1st and July 1st each year. 

158

Item 8.



g.  USCB may provide laboratory services to entities other than the County, with just 
compensation for said services, provided doing so does not interfere with its 
monitoring responsibilities to the County.    

 

3. The County 
 

a. The County shall issue an annual purchase order for $170,000 to USCB for 
sampling and analytical services and other tasks as described in Attachment 1.  
Payments of $85,000 will be made bi-annually by the County on January 1st and 
July 1st each year.  
 

b. Any funds in excess of those required for the County’s services will be spent at the 
discretion of USCB laboratory staff on local water quality projects, laboratory 
operations including obtaining and maintaining State certifications, and equipment 
upgrades, replacements, and service contracts.  

 
c. Prior to any sampling and analysis by USCB, an “Analytical Water Quality Service 

Request” form (see attachment 2) must be completed to ensure a mutual 
understanding of requested services.  Any modification to the requested services 
will require the completion of a new “Analytical Water Quality Service Request” 
form. 
 

4. General Requirements of the Agreement 

a. The parties hereto intend that no master/servant, employer/employee, or 
principal/agent relationship will be created by this Agreement. Nothing contained 
herein creates any relationship between the County and USCB other than that which 
is expressly stated herein. The County is interested only in the results to be achieved 
under this Agreement, and the conduct and control of the agents and employees of 
USCB and the methods utilized by USCB in fulfilling its obligations hereunder 
shall lie solely and exclusively with USCB, and its agents and employees shall not 
be considered agents or employees of the County for any purpose. No person 
employed by USCB shall have any benefits, status, or right of employment with 
the County. 

b. This Agreement shall not be modified unless such modification is made by mutual 
consent of both parties at any time in writing and signed by both the County and 
USCB. 

159

Item 8.



c. USCB may not assign this Agreement to another organization without the prior 
written approval of the County. 

5. Default Remedies 

 In the event USCB does not remedy such conditions that have been found in violation of 
this Agreement with 30 days after written notice to do so is given by the County, or if 
insufficient progress is being made toward the remedy within those 30 days, the County 
may use a portion, or all, of the allocated funds to remedy the conditions. 

6. Term 

The term of this contract shall be from the date of execution for one (1) years. The Contract 
will be reviewed by the County and USCB annually to determine funding availability for 
the upcoming year, as well as changes to the “Scope of Services” (see attachment 1). 

7. Termination for Convenience 

a. In addition to any other rights to termination set forth in this Contract, in the event 
both parties mutually agree to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of 
the Term, the County shall be entitled to a pro-rata refund of the money set out in 
Paragraph 3a above. 

b. The County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for convenience upon 
60 days written notice to USCB. In the event the County terminates this Agreement 
for convenience, the County shall pay the Laboratory for services performed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature hereto the date first 
written hereinabove. 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT    UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA  

 

By_____________________________                      By_____________________________ 

Eric Greenway     Nida Reid Williamson 
Interim County Administrator   Associate Director, Sponsored Awards 
Management 
         

Date____________________________  Date___5/28/21____________________                                             
                                                                   
Address:      Address:      
Beaufort County PO Drawer 1228 Beaufort, SC 29901  

Nida Reid-
Williamson,

Digitally signed by Nida Reid-
Williamson, 
Date: 2021.05.28 11:31:44 
-04'00'

160

Item 8.



University of South Carolina 

Sponsored Awards Management 

1600 Hampton Street, Suite 414 

Columbia, SC 29208 

 

                     

Attachment 2 

SCOPE OF SERVICES                      

The Scope of Services in the Contract between Beaufort County and USCB includes those 
activities specified in sections A and B below.     

A. Sampling and Analysis Services 
 

1. Field collection, in situ analysis, and laboratory-based analysis of water 
samples at locations and frequencies agreed upon by both parties and as 
reflected in the “Analytical Water Quality Service Request” form.   
 

2. USCB shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of analytical 
equipment, purchasing laboratory supplies, and supplying qualified personnel 
to provide sampling and analytical services.    

 
B. Stormwater Meeting Attendance, Input Into Monitoring Plan, and Annual 

Report Generation  
 
1. USCB Laboratory staff shall attend monthly stormwater coordination 

meetings in person or via conference call, as workload allows.    
  

2. USCB Laboratory staff shall participate in the development and routine 
updates of the County’s water quality monitoring plan.  
 

C. USCB Water Quality Laboratory Assays  
 
1. A comprehensive list of assays currently conducted by the USCB laboratory is 

shown below.  Should the County request an assay not among those in 
USCB’s list of assays, USCB will attempt to find a laboratory capable of such 
analysis or at its discretion, develop the capability to perform the assay 

161

Item 8.



through the purchase of additional equipment and supplies and receipt of 
additional training, as needed.  Both parties will evaluate each request beyond 
current laboratory capability and together, determine which party will be 
responsible for funding.  The funding mechanism will be mutually agreed 
upon and may come from the original funding supplied by the County (see 
paragraph 3a of the Agreement), additional County funds, or a combination of 
the two. 

 

 
 

2. Laboratory Contacts: 
 

Title  Name  Contact  
      

Laboratory Director: Dr. Alan Warren Office: 843-208-8338 
    Mobile:   843-812-3887 
      
      

Laboratory Manager: Danielle Mickel Office: 843-208-8193 ( WQL) 
    Mobile: 843-298-1612 
      
 

Water Quality Analyst: 
 
Hamp Simkins Office: 843-208-8193 (WQL) 

    Mobile: 843-252-1616 
 

  

162

Item 8.



 

 

 

 

USCB Water Quality Laboratory Assays  
 (effective February 2016) 

  
IN-SITU PARAMETERS 

Ambient Air and Water Temperature, Turbidity, pH, Dissolved Oxygen, Salinity, Conductivity, Depth 

INORGANIC-NUTRIENTS 
Ammonia Nitrogen (NH3) 
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) 
Nitrate plus Nitrite Nitrogen (NOx) 
Total Nitrogen (TN) 
Total Phosphorus (TP) 
METALS 
Cadmium 
Chromium 
Copper  
Iron 
Lead 
Manganese 
Mercury 
Nickel 
Zinc 
INORGANIC-DEMAND 
Total Organic Carbon (TOC) 
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5) 
INORGANIC-RESIDUE 
Total Suspended Solids 
BIOLOGICAL 
Chlorophyll-a 
MICROBIOLOGICAL 
Total Coliform + E. coli 
Fecal Coliform 
Enterococcus 

163

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award– Non-Competitive Contract with University Of South Carolina Beaufort (USCB) 
Water Quality Lab ($170,000.00) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28th, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACE – Engineering    

Neil Desai, P.E  - Public Works Director (Alternate) 

(5 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

June 2013 – County and USCB entered MOU contracting water quality lab services 
June 2016 – County and USCB renewed MOU 
April 2021 – All Cost Sharing Municipalities provided Management Budget concurrence letters 
June 9th, 2021 – Presented at the Stormwater Utility Board Meeting 
June 21st, 2021 – Approved by Public Facilities Committee 
Utilizing the local USCB lab allows for the needed time to sample and test within restrictions. While there are 
other labs located in Savannah and Charleston for testing, those locations add an additional 3+ hours drive 
time thus allowing a very small window to collect (there are specific hold times on samples to be turned into 
a qualified lab). Beaufort County Stormwater Department has been contracted with USCB since 2013 and the 
County has funded all purchases of lab equipment. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

In the County’s mission to protect our water resources, the County has contracted with the University of 
South Carolina Beaufort (USCB) since 2013. The County would like to continue its water quality efforts with 
the Water Quality Lab at USCB. The current contract expires at the end of June. This contract also supports 
work done within the City of Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal limits, which is cost shared through 
Stormwater Utility Fees. Cost share concurrence letters from both municipalities have been obtained. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

USCB requires $170,000.00 to provide annual services, which includes staff funding, equipment repair and 
purchase, sample analysis, and other costs associated with running the Water Quality Lab. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the Non-Competitive Contract award to USCB. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve recommendation of Non-Competitive Contract award to USCB for $170,000.00 

Motion to deny recommendation of Non-Competitive Contract award to USCB for $170,000.00 

(Next Step – Upon approval, send to County Administrator for signature) 

 
164

Item 8.



 

165

Item 8.



166

Item 8.



167

Item 8.



168

Item 8.



Service Agreement between Beaufort County South Carolina and University of South 

Carolina – Beaufort for Water Quality Monitoring Services 

 

1. Governing Document 

It is the intent of the parties that this contract shall supersede any other agreements entered 

between the County and USCB regarding monitoring services. 

2. USCB 
 

a. USCB shall be responsible to utilize a SC certified laboratory to conduct the 

required analyzes if the USCB Water Quality Laboratory does not currently hold 

SC DHEC certification for that parameter (s). 

 

b. USCB shall continue to operate and manage a laboratory able to receive and analyze 

the County’s samples during normal hours of operation of 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, 

Monday through Friday.  If extenuating circumstances occur that require certain 

services, such as sample receipt, outside of normal operating hours, the County 

should inform Laboratory personnel in advance so that accommodations can be 

made.  Samples requiring analysis for BOD5, Chlorophyll-a and/or microbiology, 

must be received by the Laboratory no later than noon on Thursday. 

 

c. All analytical results will be reported within 30 days of sample receipt.  A 

preliminary report of completed results prior to 30 days can be issued to the County 

in the event of illicit discharge tracking, time sensitive projects, or when requested 

by the County and agreed upon by both parties.  Analytical results for 

microbiological parameters are typically available 48 hours after sample receipt and 

can be conveyed to the County thereafter. Analytical results will be conveyed to the 

County via email, unless otherwise requested.  Additional costs may be incurred for 

customized reporting and/or data interpretation.     

d. USCB laboratory staff will make a good faith effort to be responsive to unforeseen 

water quality needs as they arise. 

e. USCB will separately track monitoring services provided North of the Broad River 

to the City of Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal and provide the County’s 

accounting office with summary reports separating such services accordingly.   

f. USCB will submit to the County a summary of all monitoring activity conducted 

on its behalf, as well as related expenses, on January 1st and July 1st each year. 

169

Item 8.



g.  USCB may provide laboratory services to entities other than the County, with just 

compensation for said services, provided doing so does not interfere with its 

monitoring responsibilities to the County.    

 

3. The County 

 

a. The County shall issue an annual purchase order for $170,000 to USCB for 

sampling and analytical services and other tasks as described in Attachment 1.  

Payments of $85,000 will be made bi-annually by the County on January 1st and 

July 1st each year.  

 

b. Any funds in excess of those required for the County’s services will be spent at the 

discretion of USCB laboratory staff on local water quality projects, laboratory 

operations including obtaining and maintaining State certifications, and equipment 

upgrades, replacements, and service contracts.  

 

c. Prior to any sampling and analysis by USCB, an “Analytical Water Quality Service 

Request” form (see attachment 2) must be completed to ensure a mutual 

understanding of requested services.  Any modification to the requested services 

will require the completion of a new “Analytical Water Quality Service Request” 

form. 

 

4. General Requirements of the Agreement 

a. The parties hereto intend that no master/servant, employer/employee, or 

principal/agent relationship will be created by this Agreement. Nothing contained 

herein creates any relationship between the County and USCB other than that which 

is expressly stated herein. The County is interested only in the results to be achieved 

under this Agreement, and the conduct and control of the agents and employees of 

USCB and the methods utilized by USCB in fulfilling its obligations hereunder 

shall lie solely and exclusively with USCB, and its agents and employees shall not 

be considered agents or employees of the County for any purpose. No person 

employed by USCB shall have any benefits, status, or right of employment with 

the County. 

b. This Agreement shall not be modified unless such modification is made by mutual 

consent of both parties at any time in writing and signed by both the County and 

USCB. 

170

Item 8.



c. USCB may not assign this Agreement to another organization without the prior 

written approval of the County. 

5. Default Remedies 

 In the event USCB does not remedy such conditions that have been found in violation of 

this Agreement with 30 days after written notice to do so is given by the County, or if 

insufficient progress is being made toward the remedy within those 30 days, the County 

may use a portion, or all, of the allocated funds to remedy the conditions. 

6. Term 

The term of this contract shall be from the date of execution for one (1) years. The Contract 

will be reviewed by the County and USCB annually to determine funding availability for 

the upcoming year, as well as changes to the “Scope of Services” (see attachment 1). 

7. Termination for Convenience 

a. In addition to any other rights to termination set forth in this Contract, in the event 

both parties mutually agree to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of 

the Term, the County shall be entitled to a pro-rata refund of the money set out in 

Paragraph 3a above. 

b. The County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for convenience upon 

60 days written notice to USCB. In the event the County terminates this Agreement 

for convenience, the County shall pay the Laboratory for services performed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signature hereto the date first 

written hereinabove. 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT    UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA  

 

By_____________________________                      By_____________________________ 

Eric Greenway     Naida Reid Williamson 

Interim County Administrator   Director, Sponsored Awards Management 
         

Date____________________________  Date______________________________                                             

                                                                   

Address:      Address:      

Beaufort County     Sponsored Awards Management  

PO Drawer 1228     901 Sumter Street, 5th Floor               

Beaufort, SC 29901     Columbia, SC 29208 

171

Item 8.



Attachment 2 

SCOPE OF SERVICES                      

The Scope of Services in the Contract between Beaufort County and USCB includes those 

activities specified in sections A and B below.     

A. Sampling and Analysis Services 

 

1. Field collection, in situ analysis, and laboratory-based analysis of water 

samples at locations and frequencies agreed upon by both parties and as 

reflected in the “Analytical Water Quality Service Request” form.   

 

2. USCB shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of analytical 

equipment, purchasing laboratory supplies, and supplying qualified personnel 

to provide sampling and analytical services.    

 

B. Stormwater Meeting Attendance, Input Into Monitoring Plan, and Annual 

Report Generation  

 

1. USCB Laboratory staff shall attend monthly stormwater coordination 

meetings in person or via conference call, as workload allows.    

  

2. USCB Laboratory staff shall participate in the development and routine 

updates of the County’s water quality monitoring plan.  

 

C. USCB Water Quality Laboratory Assays  

 

1. A comprehensive list of assays currently conducted by the USCB laboratory is 

shown below.  Should the County request an assay not among those in 

USCB’s list of assays, USCB will attempt to find a laboratory capable of such 

analysis or at its discretion, develop the capability to perform the assay 

through the purchase of additional equipment and supplies and receipt of 

additional training, as needed.  Both parties will evaluate each request beyond 

current laboratory capability and together, determine which party will be 

responsible for funding.  The funding mechanism will be mutually agreed 

upon and may come from the original funding supplied by the County (see 

paragraph 3a of the Agreement), additional County funds, or a combination of 

the two. 

 

172

Item 8.



 

 

2. Laboratory Contacts: 

 

Title  Name  Contact  

      

Laboratory Director: Dr. Alan Warren Office: 843-208-8338 

    Mobile:   843-812-3887 

      

      

Laboratory Manager: Danielle Mickel Office: 843-208-8193 ( WQL) 

    Mobile: 843-298-1612 

      

 

Water Quality Analyst: 

 

Hamp Simkins Office: 843-208-8193 (WQL) 

    Mobile: 843-252-1616 

 

  

173

Item 8.



 

 

 

 

USCB Water Quality Laboratory Assays  
 (effective February 2016) 

  

IN-SITU PARAMETERS 

Ambient Air and Water Temperature, Turbidity, pH, Dissolved Oxygen, Salinity, Conductivity, Depth 

INORGANIC-NUTRIENTS 

Ammonia Nitrogen (NH3) 

Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) 

Nitrate plus Nitrite Nitrogen (NOx) 

Total Nitrogen (TN) 

Total Phosphorus (TP) 

METALS 

Cadmium 

Chromium 

Copper  

Iron 

Lead 

Manganese 

Mercury 

Nickel 

Zinc 

INORGANIC-DEMAND 

Total Organic Carbon (TOC) 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5) 

INORGANIC-RESIDUE 

Total Suspended Solids 

BIOLOGICAL 

Chlorophyll-a 

MICROBIOLOGICAL 

Total Coliform + E. coli 

Fecal Coliform 

Enterococcus 

174

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award for IFB #061421– US-278 Flyover Drainage Erosion Improvements ($XXXXX) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28th, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACE – Engineering    

Neil Desai, P.E  - Public Works Director (Alternate) 

(5 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

May 13th, 2021 – IFB posted on Vendor Registry  
June 9th, 2021 – Presented at the Stormwater Utility Board Meeting 
June 21st, 2021 – Approved at Public Facilities Committee 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

After completion of construction of the US-278 Bluffton Flyover, staff recognized erosion occurring at the 
outlet structures built within the roadway. Work to repair erosion issues needs to occur as soon as possible to 
prevent further impacts associated with the erosion. This project was put out for bid, with County staff 
choosing XXXXXXX, the lowest, most responsive and responsible bidder.    

FISCAL IMPACT:  

XXXXXX provided a bid of $XXXXXXX With a 10% contingency of $XXXXX, the total project cost is $XXXXXX. 
Funding will come from budgeted construction funds from the Stormwater Utility Fund that currently has a 
balance of $XXXXXXX 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the award of IFB #061421– US-278 Flyover Drainage Erosion Improvements to 
XXXXXXXXXX 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve recommendation of award for IFB#061421– US-278 Flyover Drainage Erosion 
Improvements to XXXXXXXX 

Motion to deny recommendation of award for IFB#061421 – US-278 Flyover Drainage Erosion Improvements 
to XXXXXX 

(Next Step – Upon approval, notify Contract recipient) 

 

 

175

Item 9.



176

Item 9.



177

Item 9.



178

Item 9.



179

Item 9.



180

Item 9.



181

Item 9.



182

Item 9.



183

Item 9.



184

Item 9.



185

Item 9.



186

Item 9.



187

Item 9.



188

Item 9.



189

Item 9.



190

Item 9.



191

Item 9.



192

Item 9.



193

Item 9.



194

Item 9.



195

Item 9.



196

Item 9.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

6/14/2021

Project Name:
US-278 Flyover Roadway Drainage Oufall 

Erosion Improvements
Project Number: IFB 061421
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: June 14 2021
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM BID   BOND

ALL 
ADDE
NDA

SCH OF 
VALUES SUB LISTING SMBE DOCS Grand Total Price 

Greener Habitats X X N/A X Self Performing X
225,100.00$                                                 

L-J Inc. X X N/A X X X
718,573.00$                                                 

Truluck Construction X X N/A X Self Performing X
147,530.00$                                                 

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation is 
posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid results 
indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be made by 
Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

197

Item 9.



�������������	��
����
������������������������������������������ �!�  �"#��$���$����%&#����'#���(()�#��*$��+��$��,����$ ����(--��.�(() �/01234�56789:;<4967�86:;�,��=�>$��*$��>$����#?�#��@����$���$���>�'$�=�A#��"��$�#�$��>$����#?�#��������,#��$ �&���B$�"$��"�C�A �&+��,#�*$  $'��"���*$�D�B$�������E�����@��>C#�$*��$$���$���#�F�&#���##�#��'��,���"#�#�� ��#�&��CB$�G
���BD��#����$H#&���$��G��� IJJKLMN�OLPQRS�T�OUPR VLMW�T�IJJKLMN�XUYUMJR��$DD#���G��#C���D#����#��G��� #�,��#���+��#C���D#��Z����D#G�����AD�[#�G� ����#\��D#G�� ]̂�_̀ab�cddcefbg ]̂�_̀ab�cddcefbg ]̂�_̀ab�cddcefbg�1hijklmhnl�ohjp�:hqrhs�jnp�trunv��#C���D#����#�����"�����#� ������#\��D#G��

��",'�>�(w)���$��$���#C�������
 >$F#������"#@��#C������##�#������$����� #�����#��$�#�$��$������#�@�x$�=��##�#����& ��#���
y)�+���@��z�(z�����z��w���$����$*#���$�� ��#�F�&#� {z�+���
�((�,����  $[#��y{z�+���@���*$��'$�=��$�A#�C#�*$�D#�����#���$����$*#���$�� ��#�F�&#�+�,$'#F#��A��"#��,������ #�,@�#���|A&"$F@�#��#��*$����$���>���$�D'��#�=,#��#�� �z\��\(�(� ��G�-G�-��

�� #�,@�#��� ��\�z\(�(� ��G�zGz(��
198

Item 9.



������������	�
���������������������� ���������� ��������������� ���������������� ���������� �!"���#!�$����%!&�$������� ��'$��()!������*+,�-�	��.�����	�
����������������� ���������������� ���������� �!"���/��� $0!�&�%!&�$������ ��'$��()!�����
������0� ��0 �$�1 $��!2 3(45(6764 47�77�68��9������0� �� �$0 3(45(6764 47�4:�6;��9

199

Item 9.



200

Item 9.



201

Item 9.



202

Item 9.



203

Item 9.



204

Item 9.



205

Item 9.



206

Item 9.



207

Item 9.



208

Item 9.



209

Item 9.



210

Item 9.



211

Item 9.



212

Item 9.



213

Item 9.



214

Item 9.



215

Item 9.



216

Item 9.



217

Item 9.



218

Item 9.



219

Item 9.



220

Item 9.



221

Item 9.



222

Item 9.



223

Item 9.



224

Item 9.



225

Item 9.



226

Item 9.



227

Item 9.



228

Item 9.



229

Item 9.



230

Item 9.



231

Item 9.



232

Item 9.



233

Item 9.



234

Item 9.



235

Item 9.



236

Item 9.



237

Item 9.



238

Item 9.



239

Item 9.



240

Item 9.



241

Item 9.



242

Item 9.



243

Item 9.



244

Item 9.



245

Item 9.



246

Item 9.



247

Item 9.



248

Item 9.



249

Item 9.



250

Item 9.



251

Item 9.



252

Item 9.



253

Item 9.



254

Item 9.



255

Item 9.



256

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award for IFB #051321 – Brewer Memorial Stormwater Improvements ($371,212.71) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28th, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACE – Engineering    

Neil Desai, P.E  - Public Works Director (Alternate) 

(5 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

April 13th, 2021 – IFB posted on Vendor Registry  
June 9th, 2021 – Presented at the Stormwater Utility Board Meeting 
June 21st, 2021 – Approved at Public Facilities Committee 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

As development pressures increase in the County, there is a continuous need to protect our creeks and rivers 
in the area. Therefore, Beaufort County Stormwater designed a project to address Stormwater improvements 
to be built at Brewer Memorial Park, a passive park co-owned by the Beaufort County Open Land Trust. This 
project will treat previously untreated runoff from the roadway, before discharge to Factory Creek. Beaufort 
County Stormwater has recommended the contract for construction be awarded to Truluck Construction, Inc. 
the lowest, most responsible bidder.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Truluck Construction provided a bid of $337,466.10. With a 10% contingency of $33,746.61 the total project 
cost is $371,466.10. Funding will come from budgeted construction funds out of account 50260017-51160 
from the Stormwater Utility Fund that currently has a balance of $600,000.00. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the award of IFB #051321– Brewer Memorial Stormwater Improvements to 
Truluck Construction, Inc. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve recommendation of award for IFB#051321 – Brewer Memorial Stormwater Improvements 
to Truluck Construction, Inc. 

Motion to deny recommendation of award for IFB#051321 – Brewer Memorial Stormwater Improvements to 
Truluck Construction, Inc.  

(Next Step – Notify contract recipient) 

 

 

257

Item 10.



258

Item 10.



259

Item 10.



260

Item 10.



261

Item 10.



262

Item 10.



263

Item 10.



264

Item 10.



265

Item 10.



266

Item 10.



267

Item 10.



268

Item 10.



269

Item 10.



270

Item 10.



271

Item 10.



272

Item 10.



273

Item 10.



274

Item 10.



275

Item 10.



276

Item 10.



277

Item 10.



278

Item 10.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

5/13/2021

Project Name:
Brewer Memorial Park Stormwater 

Improvements
Project Number: IFB 051321
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 12-May-21
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM BID   BOND
ALL 

ADDENDA
SCH OF 
VALUES SUB LISTING SMBE DOCS TOTAL COST

Gulf Stream Construction X X X X X
 $                                               472,300.33 

Oquinn Marine Construction Inc. X X X X X X
 $                                               586,798.00 

Truluck Construction X X X X Self Performing X 337,466.10$                                                

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation is posted as it 
was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid results indicated here do not 
necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be made by Beaufort County Council and a 
certified bid tab will be posted online. 

279

Item 10.



280

Item 11.



281

Item 11.



282

Item 11.



283

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Land Acquisition – Factory Creek M2 Project – Parcel #R200 015 000 0559 0000 ($1.00) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28th, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACE – Engineering    

Neil Desai, P.E  - Public Works Director (Alternate) 

(5 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

October 18th, 2017 – Agreement between County and Developer signed 
March 23, 2018 – All permits for construction obtained 
February 2nd, 2020 – Executed 1 year extension request between Developer and County 
March 23rd, 2021 – Developer completed all necessary contract requirements 
June 9th, 2021 – Presented at the Stormwater Utility Board Meeting 
June 21st – Approved at Public Facilities Committee 
 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The County entered into a Public – Private partnership with the Developer of Academy Estates to design and 
build a regional Stormwater pond for water quality and water quantity control. After development of the 
pond, the County is to purchase the property for the sum of $1.00 from the developer, and the County will 
take over the ownership and maintenance of the pond. The Contract was extended for one year at the 
request of the developer from completion on 3/32/2020 to 3/23/2021. All development has been completed 
and the developer has met all requirements of the agreement dated 10/18/2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The County agreed to purchase parcel # R200 015 000 0559 0000 for $1.00. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the purchase of parcel # R200 015 000 0559 0000 for $1.00 from Academy Park LLC 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve recommendation of land acquisition from Academy Estates LLC for $1.00. 

Motion to deny recommendation of land acquisition from Academy Estates LLC for $1.00. 

(Next Step – Upon approval, send to County Administrator for execution of purchase) 

 

 

284

Item 11.



 

1 

RESOLUTION 2021/_____ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 

THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO PURCHASE PROPERTY  

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County Stormwater entered into an agreement with Academy Park, 

LLC or its assigns, (“Developer”) on October 18th, 2017; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County developed a regional best management practice (Stormwater 

retention pond) on Developer’s property identified as the Rock Springs Creek Watershed Project 

Phase I (Factory Creek M2) or “Project”; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer completed all requirements of the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Seller intends to sell the County the Property, for a purchase price of 

$1.00 as determined by the 2017 agreement, and 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council finds that it is in the best interest of the citizens and 

residents of Beaufort County for the County Administrator to execute the necessary documents  

and provide funding for the purchase the Property. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly 

assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to execute the necessary documents, 

specifically a Purchase Agreement substantially consistent with the terms provided in Exhibit B, 

and to provide funds from the Stormwater Utility Fund in the amount of $1.00 for the purchase of 

real property with a TMS# R200 0015 000 0559 0000.  

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________, 2021.  

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

BY:        

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:  

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council  

285

Item 11.



286

Item 11.



 

 1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

)  AGREEMENT TO SELL AND 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  )  PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY 

 

THIS AGREEMENT TO SELL AND PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY 

(“Agreement”) made and entered into this ________ day of ____________________ 2021 

(“Effective Date”), by and between BEAUFORT COUNTY, a subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina (the "Purchaser") and Academy Park LLC (the "Seller"); hereinafter collectively 

referred to as the “Parties”. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto have had preliminary discussions with regard to the sale 

and purchase of certain real property located in Seabrook, Beaufort County, South Carolina, and 

it is their desire to document their understandings with respect to said real property. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the real property and of the mutual promises 

and covenants herein contained the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Real Property. The Seller agrees to sell and the Purchaser agrees to purchase the real 

property with the address of 29 Fairfield Road, also currently identified as TMS R200 015 000 

0559 0000, and as further described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference, together with all appurtenances, rights, easements, rights-of-way, tenements and 

hereditaments incident thereto, and all title and interest, if any, of Seller in and to all strips, gores, 

and any land lying in the bed of any street, road, or avenue open, proposed in front or adjoining 

the property (collectively, the "Property").       

 

2. Consideration / Purchase Price. The purchase price of the Property shall be One and 

XX/100 ($1.00) Dollars and for other valuable consideration as described in this Agreement 

(“Purchase Price”).  

 

4. Conveyance and Due Diligence Period. The Purchaser shall perform all due diligence 

on the Property no later than thirty (30) days from the Effective Date.  The Purchaser shall be 

solely responsible for any costs associated with Due Diligence.    

 

a) Conveyance of Real Property/Title. Conveyance shall be made subject to all 

easements, encumbrances (but not liens), covenants, conditions and restrictions of record 

(provided they do not make the title unmarketable), to all governmental statutes, ordinances, rules 

and regulations and to all matters that would be disclosed by a current and accurate survey and 

inspection of the Property.  Title to the Property shall be conveyed to the Purchaser by limited 

warranty deed.  Seller agrees to convey marketable title, free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances.   

 

Purchaser shall have the responsibility to examine the title to the Property. Purchaser 

shall notify Seller in writing of any title defects during the Inspection Period.  Seller shall have 

thirty (30) days from the date of such notification in which to cure such defects at its own expense 

or to decline to cure such defects noted by Purchaser.  Seller shall notify Purchaser in writing of 

Seller’s election to cure or decline to cure such defects noted by Purchaser within ten (10) days of 

receipt of Purchaser’s notice.  Purchaser shall then have five (5) days from the date of Seller’s 

notice to notify Seller of Purchaser’s termination of this Agreement for lack of sufficient cure to 

such defects.  Absent Seller’s receipt of notice from Purchaser within said five (5) day period, all 

of Purchaser’s outstanding defects shall be deemed Permitted Exceptions, and the Closing shall 

be held on or before the date provided for Closing in this Agreement.    

287

Item 11.



 

 2 

 

b) Property Sold “As Is”.  Purchaser acknowledges that the Property is being sold 

“as is”, and that Seller has the opportunity to perform a full examination of the Property prior to 

the Closing Date.  The Purchaser shall not make any request to perform any tasks on the property, 

including but not limited to, removing vegetation or clearing the Property of any timber.   

 

c) Inspection. Purchaser hereby acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser has or will 

thoroughly inspect and examine the property prior to closing.  Purchaser is responsible for 

obtaining inspection reports from qualified professionals to assess the Property.  Purchaser and/or 

its agents shall have the privilege of going upon the Property at any time during the existence of 

this Agreement to inspect, examine, and survey. Purchaser assumes all responsibility for the acts 

of itself, its agents or representatives in exercising its rights under this Agreement. 

 

7. Closing. The Closing occurs when Purchaser transfers the Purchase Price to Seller and 

Seller conveys the Property to Purchaser.  

 

a) Closing Date. The Closing shall occur on or before _______________, 2021 

(“Closing Date”) at the offices of Purchaser’s attorney, or on such other date, place and/or time as 

the Parties may mutually agree.    

 

b) Closing Costs and Prorations. All current real estate taxes, assessments, dues and 

other proratable items, if any, shall be apportioned pro rata on a per diem basis as of the Closing 

Date.  All taxes for any and all years prior to 2021 shall be the responsibility of the Seller. Seller 

shall be responsible for paying the South Carolina recording fee (formerly referred to as 

documentary stamps), transfer tax to be affixed to the deed and related transfer documents, if any 

such fee or tax be applicable to this transaction. Purchaser shall be responsible for any other fees 

for recording the deed and for any of its financing costs. Each party shall be responsible for its 

own legal fees. 

 

c) Roll-back Taxes. Should any roll-back taxes become due after the Closing Date, 

Purchaser shall be responsible for the immediate payment of all rollback taxes assessed from the 

Closing date forward.  

 

8. Brokerage Fees.  Seller represents that the Property is not subject to a listing contract 

with any real estate broker.   Purchaser shall be responsible for any real estate commissions owed 

for real estate services provided to Purchaser.  The Parties agree to indemnify and hold each other 

harmless from any claim of commission by others arising by, through or on account of the acts of 

the Parties.  

 

9. Seller's Delivery of Documentation. Seller shall deliver to Purchaser at or before the 

Closing (at such times as Purchaser may reasonably request) all of the following documents, the 

delivery and accuracy of which shall be a condition to Purchaser's obligation to consummate the 

purchase and sale herein contemplated: 

 

a) Limited Warranty Deed. A limited warranty deed satisfactory in form and 

substance to counsel for Purchaser, conveying fee simple title to the Property, free and clear of all 

liens, encumbrances, easements and restrictions of every nature and description, except those 

Permitted Exceptions referenced herein.   

 

10. Conditions Precedent.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated herein, the 

obligations of Purchaser to purchase the property are expressly made subject to the Seller’s 

representation that as of the Closing Date the warranties and representations of Seller shall be true 

288

Item 11.



 

 3 

and correct.  The foregoing conditions are for the sole benefit of and may be waived by Purchaser 

by written notice to Seller. 

 

11. Default. If Buyer or Seller fails to perform any provision of this Agreement, the other 

party may elect to seek any remedy provided in equity (but not at law for money damages) as a 

result of such failure to perform, including an action for specific performance of Seller’s 

obligations under this Agreement, or terminate this Agreement with a five (5) day written notice. 

If terminated, both Parties shall execute a written release of the other from this Agreement.  The 

Parties agree to cooperatively pursue their obligations set forth herein in good faith.   

 

12. Notices.  Any notice, communication, request, approval or consent which may be given 

or is required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

transmitted (1) via hand delivery or express overnight delivery service to the Seller or the 

Purchaser, (2) via facsimile with the original to follow via hand delivery or overnight delivery 

service, or (3) via e-mail, provided that the sending party can show proof of delivery, as the case 

may be, at the addresses/numbers set forth below: 

 

TO PURCHASER: 

 

Beaufort County 

Post Office Box 1228 

Beaufort, SC  29901 

Attn:  County Administrator 

 

Copy to: Beaufort County 

Post Office Box 1228 

Beaufort, SC  29901 

Attn:  Brittany Ward , Beaufort County Deputy Attorney 

E-mail: bward@bcgov.net 

(843) 255-2059 

 

TO SELLER: 

 

Academy Park LLC 

Post Office Box 2238 

Beaufort, SC 29901 

Attn: Robert Sample 

Email: robesample@gmail.com 

 

 

14. Condemnation. In the event that at the time of Closing all or any part of the Property is 

acquired, or is about to be acquired, by authority of any governmental agency in the exercise of 

its power of eminent domain or by private purchase in lieu thereof (or in the event that at such 

time there is any threat or imminence of any such acquisition by any such governmental agency), 

Purchaser shall have the right, at its option, to immediately terminate this Agreement, or to 

purchase only so much of the Property not condemned or under threat of condemnation, in which 

event the purchase price and terms shall be adjusted accordingly. 

 

15. No Joint Venture. It is understood and agreed between the Parties hereto that this is an 

agreement for the sale and purchase of real estate and is in no way to be considered a joint 

venture between Seller and Purchaser. It is further understood and agreed that Purchaser is 

assuming no liabilities, whether fixed or contingent, of Seller, and that this is a purchase of real 

estate assets. 

 

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement incorporates any and all prior agreements, 

covenants, and understandings between the Parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, 

and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into this agreement. No 

289

Item 11.



 

 4 

prior agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the Parties or their agents shall be 

valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement. 

 

17. Binding Nature and Assignment.  This Agreement shall bind the Parties and their 

respective successors in interest as may be permitted by law. Neither party to this Agreement may 

assign their rights or obligations arising under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

the other party. 

 

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each of the 

counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

 

19. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.  

If a court finds that any provision of this Lease is invalid or unenforceable, then such provision 

shall be deemed to be written, construed and enforced as so limited. 

 

20. Amendment. This Agreement cannot be amended orally or by a single party.  No 

amendment or change to this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by both 

Parties to this Agreement. 

 

21. Authority. Each individual and entity executing this Agreement hereby represents and 

warrants that he, she or it has the capacity set forth on the signature pages hereof with full power 

and authority to bind the party on whose behalf he, she or it is executing this Agreement to the 

terms hereof.   

 

22. Governing Law. The laws of the State of South Carolina shall govern the interpretation, 

validity, performance and enforcement of this Agreement; and, of any personal guarantees given 

in connection with this Agreement. 

 

23. Time is of the Essence.  The time and dates specified in this Agreement shall be 

enforced; however, the time and dates may be modified for reasonable cause when both parties 

agree in writing to a reasonable extension.     

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and in acknowledgement that the parties hereto have read and 

understood each and every provision hereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be 

executed on the date first written above. 

 

 

WITNESSES:     SELLER:  

 

 

_________________________   ____________________________________ 

      By: Robert Sample 

_________________________   Its: Owner      

 

 

WITNESSES:     PURCHASER:  

 

 

_________________________   ________________________________ 

Name: Eric Greenway 

Its: Beaufort County Administrator 

290

Item 11.



 

 

Exhibit "A" 

 

 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 
LOT 26 ACADEMY ESTATES PB152 PG103 FKA LOT 8 ACADEMY ESTATES S/D~ SPLIT PARCEL 8 /19 AC 

4.759 15/1120-1133LOT 8 ACADEMY ESTATES S/D  

  

291

Item 11.



292

Item 11.



For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 
293

Item 11.

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


294

Item 11.



295

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of award for IFB #052721 S. O. Administration Building HVAC Replacement at 1501 Bay 
Street ($983,059.00)  

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

County Council – June 28, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Mark Roseneau, Director, Facility Management (Alternate) 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The project consist of replacing the existing HVAC and energy management system at the Sheriff’s 
Administration Building at 1501 Bay Street. 

Item was approved at Public Facilities Committee on June 21, 2021 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

On April 29, 2021, a solicitation was published for the HVAC Replacement at the Sheriff’s Office 1501 Bay 
Street.  Two bids were received; 

1.  Coastal Air Technologies            $950,000.00       
2.  Triad Mechanical Contractors   $983,059.00       

Coastal Air Technologies bid was non-responsive to the SMBE requirements therefore the bid was rejected.  
The next qualified and responsive bid is Triad Mechanical Contractors.  See the attached SMBE summary. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Triad Mechanical’s bid is a total of $983,059 to complete the project. The funding source for this project is 
account numbers 10001201-54420. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends award of IFB #052721 S. O. Administration Building HVAC Replacement at 1501 Bay Street 
to Triad Mechanical Contractors ($983,059.00)  

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award of IFB #052721 S.O. Administration HVAC Replacement 
to Triad Mechanical Contactors. 

Next Step: Execute contract with Triad Mechanical Contractors. 

 

 
296

Item 12.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

5/27/2021

Project Name:
S.O. Administration Building HVAC 
Replacement at 1501 Bay Street

Project Number: IFB 052721
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 27-May-21
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM BID   BOND
ALL 

ADDENDA
SCH OF 
VALUES

SUB 
LISTING SMBE DOCS Grand Total Price ALT

Coastal Air Technologies X X N/A X
Self 

Performing X

950,000.00$                                                                 6,600.00$                    

Triad Mechanical Contractors X X N/A X X X 983,059.00$                                                                 
11,000.00$                  

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation is 
posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid results 
indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be made by Beaufort 
County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

297

Item 12.



Prepared by M. Spells 
 July 23, 2019 

Small and Minority Business Participation Bid Compliance Review of Good Faith Efforts 

Beaufort County Government Sheriff's Office Building HVAC Replacement (IFB #052721) 

Prime Bidder/Proposer 
1. Included Completed Good Faith Efforts Checklist Form 

2. Included Copy of Written Notice to SMBE 

3. Provided Proof of Sending Written Notice to SMBE 

4. Sent Bid Notice to SMBE 10 Days in Advance 

5. Signed Non-Discrimination Statement Form (Exhibit 1) 1 

6. Included Completed Outreach Documentation Log (Exhibit 2) 

7. Included Completed Proposed Utilization Plan (Exhibit 3) 

Total 

Total of 7 Possible Points 
Scoring: 

0 = No | 1 = Yes 

Coastal Air Tech

     0
      0

      0
     0

    0  

   0
 1

1

298

Item 12.



Prepared by M. Spells 
 July 23, 2019 

Small and Minority Business Participation Bid Compliance Review of Good Faith Efforts 

Beaufort County Government Sheriff's Office Building HVAC Replacement (IFB #052721)

Prime Bidder/Proposer 
1. Included Completed Good Faith Efforts Checklist Form 

2. Included Copy of Written Notice to SMBE 

3. Provided Proof of Sending Written Notice to SMBE 

4. Sent Bid Notice to SMBE 10 Days in Advance 

5. Signed Non-Discrimination Statement Form (Exhibit 1) 1 

6. Included Completed Outreach Documentation Log (Exhibit 2) 

7. Included Completed Proposed Utilization Plan (Exhibit 3) 

Total 

Total of 7 Possible Points 
Scoring: 

0 = No | 1 = Yes 

Triad Mech Cont.

     1
      1

      1
    1

  1  

 1
 7

1

299

Item 12.


	Top
	Item 1.	CALL TO ORDER
	Item 2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION
	Item 3.	FOIA
	Item 4.	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4.12.21 Council
	4.12.21 Caucus

	Item 6.	ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
	Item 7.	Proclamation
	Item 8.	Proclamation Honoring Mrs.Chmelik
	Chmelik Proclamation

	Item 9.	Presentation By Port Royal Sound Foundation (Dean Moss)
	Item 10.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	Item 11.	LIAISON AND COMMITTEE REPORTS
	Item 12.	APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
	Item 13.	Resolution Beaufort County Stormwater – Designation of Public Works Enforcement Officers (no fiscal impact)
	AIS STORMWATER ENFORCEMENT (County Council) Judah Wood and Julianna Corbin
	STORMWATER RESOLUTION_JWOOD_JCORBIN

	Item 14.	(HOLD JUNE 28th) PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA ("COUNCIL") ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING A SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE TO BE IMPOSED ON ALL NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE AREA
	AIS For May 24th 2021 County Council School Impact Fee 2nd Reading.Revised
	School Impact Fee Ordinance_COUNCIL DRAFT May 24th, 2021 2nd Reading.Revised

	Item 15.	(HOLD for June 28th) PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD Reading  Council-Administrator Form of Government/Council-Manager Form of Government
	AIS for change in government referendum
	Revised ORDINANCE - RETAIN OR CHANGE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT 3-31-21

	Item 16.	PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING OF AN Ordinance authorizing the execution of a quitclaim deed and waiver of reverter for real property located at 1508 Old Shell Road with TMS No. R110 011 000 105A 0000
	Ordinance, 1508 Old Shell Road - FLATTENED

	Item 17.	SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 5.23 acres (R100 027 000 042B 0000) at 335 Joe Frazier Rd from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Center
	AIS - 335 Joe Frazier Rd Rezoning
	335 Joe Frazier Rd Staff Rpt to NatRes.6-7-21
	335 Joe Frazier Rd Ordinance

	Item 18.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	Item 19.	ADJOURNMENT
	Item 1.	Third Reading - Adoption of an ordinance to reallocate unexpended funds through a FY 2021 Budget Amendment
	AIS FY21 Budget Amendment For Council
	Ordinance for budget amendment FY 2021 (002)
	FY21 Budget Amendment Exhibit A

	Item 2.	FY22 Contract Renewals from Various Departments, which were over $100,000 on June 21, 2021 and request final approval from County Council
	Finance Committee Renewals FY22 For Council

	Item 3.	Resolution revising Resolution 2020/26 reflecting the appropriate amount of CDBG and local funding containing the required cost savings language for the Detour Road Sidewalk Extension Project.
	Agenda Item Summary - Resolution Revised CDBG Detour Road Sidewalk Extension
	RESOLUTION _ 2021 Commitment Detour Road revised

	Item 4.	A Resolution establishing right of way acquisition policies associated with the implementation of 2018 One Cent Sales Tax Referendum projects approved by voters November 6, 2018.
	Agenda Item Summary - 2018 Sales Tax ROW Acquisition Policy
	Resolution - 2018 Sales Tax ROW Acqusition Policy
	Exhibit A Resolution 2019-44

	Item 5.	Public Facilities Committee’s Recommendation for FY22 Contract Renewal Approvals over $100,000 from Various Departments to County Council
	Public Facilities Renewals FY22 Package - For Council...

	Item 6.	Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) – Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Class 4 Truck – Oshkosh Airport Products
	ARFF AIP Grant Backup
	AIS - Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) - ARFF CLASS 4 TRUCK
	Formal Bid TabsignedbyDaveVictoria051821

	Item 7.	Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) – Contract Change Order No. Four – Quality Enterprises USA, Inc. – Runway 3 Extension
	Change Order 4 FINAL - Executed (1)
	AIS - Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) - QE CO 4 County Council

	Item 8.	Recommendation of Award Non-Competitive Contract with University Of South Carolina Beaufort (USCB) Water Quality Lab ($170,000.00)
	FY21 and FY22
	signedinitialed BC-USC agree 2 24 13
	Kubic Signed Revised MOU 040516
	USCB Non-Competitive Signed_USCB
	AIS - USCB Non-Competitive - to County Council June 28th
	USCB Non Competitive Purchases Form
	USCB Non-Competitive Attachments

	Item 9.	Recommendation of Award for IFB #061421– US-278 Flyover Drainage Erosion Improvements ($162,283.00)
	AIS - US278 Flyover Erosion Repairs - to County Council
	Final Bid
	Preliminary Bid Tab
	Budget Confirmation Approved pdf
	L-J Bid IFB 061421 US 278 Flyover Drainage
	(IFB) 061421_Beaufort County Bid06142021

	Item 10.	Recommendation of Award for IFB #051321– Brewer Memorial Stormwater Improvements ($371,212.71)
	AIS - Brewer Memorial Contract Award ($371,212.71)- toCounty Council
	Final Bid - Truluck Construction - Brewer Memorial Park
	Preliminary Bid Tab

	Item 11.	Land Acquisition – Factory Creek M2 Project – Parcel #R200 015 000 0559 0000 ($1.00)
	Academy Park signedAgreemnt w Developer 10.18.21
	AIS - land acquisition for Acadamy Estates - to County Council June 28
	2021 ACADEMY PARK LLC Purchase Agreement 5.25.21 katie
	ACADEMY PARK Extension request
	Purchase Agreement BC_Academy Park
	Academy park land acquisition map pdf
	Permit Issuance Date Confirmation emails
	Project Permits

	Item 12.	Recommendation of Award for the Sheriff's Office Building HVAC
	S.O. 1501 Bay Street HVAC Replacement AISFinalCCmeeting062821
	Certified Bid Tab 052721
	SMBE Bid Compliance -SO Administation BuildingHVACReplacementBayStreetCoastalAirTech
	SMBE Bid Compliance -SO Administation BuildingHVACReplacementBayStreetTriadMechanicalContractors

	Bottom




From: Herrera, Katie
To: Patrick, Tiffany
Subject: FW: Academy Park Regional Pond
Date: Monday, June 14, 2021 1:39:31 PM
Attachments: SKM_C224e19062810160.pdf


Good Afternoon Tiffany,
 
Provided below is correspondence confirming permit issuance date as well as a copy of the permit
for the project. Both items should be included in AIS.
 
Thank you,
 
Katie Herrera
Stormwater Manager
Beaufort County Stormwater
120 Shanklin Rd
Beaufort, SC 29906
Office: 843-255-2813
Cell: 843-812-2027


 


From: Andy Klosterman <andy@andrews-sc.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 1:35 PM
To: Herrera, Katie <kherrera@bcgov.net>
Subject: FW: Academy Park Regional Pond
 
Hey Katie,
 
Please see correspondence below, the March 23, 2017 date has to be typo...I attached a copy of the
development permit that is dated March 23, 2018 as well in case you don’t have it.
 
Thanks,
Andy
 


From: Rybak, Daniel <daniel.rybak@bcgov.net> 
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2019 8:01 AM
To: Andy Klosterman <andy@andrews-sc.com>
Subject: FW: Academy Park Regional Pond
 



mailto:kherrera@bcgov.net

mailto:tiffany.patrick@bcgov.net

mailto:daniel.rybak@bcgov.net

mailto:andy@andrews-sc.com



















Good Morning Andy.  I called and left message with you last week to discuss Academy Park question
you had.  The Agreement states : “Developer shall complete the Project within 24 months of receipt
of all permits.”  So in order for everyone to be on same page as to the actual completion date, can
you provide a listing of the permits received for the project and the date said permits were issued?
 
Melissa indicates below : SW Permit #5436 was issued on March 23, 2018 for parcel R200-015-000-
0558-0000.
 
I am thinking USACE may be the last permit obtained but not sure.  Thank you.  If there is anything I
can do to help let me know.
 
Dan
 


From: Rybak, Daniel 
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2019 10:49 AM
To: Larson, Eric <elarson@bcgov.net>; Allen, Melissa <Melissaa@bcgov.net>
Subject: RE: Academy Park Regional Pond
 
I agree w Melissa.  Page 2 of 4 of Agreement  -  “7.  Developer shall complete the Project within 24
months of receipt of all permits.    …..  if Project not completed within this period, Developer may
request a reasonable extension from the County…”.
 
I have call into Andy to see the permits and dates issued.
 


From: Larson, Eric <elarson@bcgov.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 9:23 AM
To: Allen, Melissa <Melissaa@bcgov.net>; Rybak, Daniel <daniel.rybak@bcgov.net>
Subject: Re: Academy Park Regional Pond
 
My notes have it at 10/18/19.   I sent the agreement to dan recently. He should have it. 


 
Eric W. Larson, PE, AICP, CPSWQ, CFM
Director, Environmental Engineering & Land Management
Director, Disaster Recovery Task Force
Manager, Stormwater Utility
President, South Carolina Assoc. of Stormwater Managers 2017-2018
Beaufort County, SC Government
120 Shanklin Road
Beaufort, S.C. 29906
(843) 255-2805 Office
(843) 255-2812 Direct
(843) 255-9436 facsimile
(843) 592-1252 mobile
elarson@bcgov.net



mailto:elarson@bcgov.net

mailto:Melissaa@bcgov.net

mailto:elarson@bcgov.net

mailto:Melissaa@bcgov.net

mailto:daniel.rybak@bcgov.net

x-apple-data-detectors://1/0

tel:(843)%20255-2805

tel:(843)%20255-2812

tel:(843)%20255-9436

tel:(843)%20592-1252

mailto:elarson@bcgov.net





www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
www.beaufortcountydisasterrecovery.net
 


On Jun 19, 2019, at 9:21 AM, Allen, Melissa <Melissaa@bcgov.net> wrote:


Eric please see Andy’s question below. 
 
I did a little research and came across the attached agreement that was signed on 10-
18-17 which indicates the pond is to be constructed within 24 months of all permits
being received.  I also contacted Tamekia and permit #5436 was issued on March 23,
2018 for parcel R200-015-000-0558-0000. 
 
Am I on the right track?           
 
 
Respectfully,
 
Melissa Allen
Administrative Assistant to the Director
Stormwater Management
120 Shanklin Rd.
Beaufort, SC 29906
(843) 255-2805
 


From: Andy Klosterman [mailto:andy@andrews-sc.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 8:42 AM
To: Allen, Melissa
Subject: Academy Park Regional Pond
 
Hey Melissa,
 
The contractor digging the detention pond at Academy Park recently asked us when his
two-year deadline to complete the pond was up.  The project had some holdups after
the project was approved by SRT and we were unsure of the date you guys were going
to hold.  Could you look into this when you get a chance and let me know? I appreciate
it!
 
Thanks,
Andy
 
Andrew Klosterman, P.E.
Project Manager
 
<image001.png>
2712 Bull St.
Beaufort, SC 29902
Ph.843-379-2222



https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.beaufortcountysc.gov&c=E,1,m2GUcSIE4HLwZiwijAWHy4kOn874S57sPF60Cjc8wtQaPcN1Y3ema3X8FJ8dnc0iKK9YMcR3AAAhpbtcDWtazVi1Ddk5nNtnGvl3XvWoDHyx&typo=1

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.beaufortcountydisasterrecovery.net%2f&c=E,1,rP-rjxrZi4xTeGQXp9lEgHlFGCdMTkThcFPqIA_1CmAxd_jjmGyQ1HvvTVqXzQMf5TLJj4vs2tKyqJGnnw6_m-jy58Ja4eP5EGvQCPlMdXyFfdhaFius3110Fscb&typo=1

mailto:Melissaa@bcgov.net

mailto:andy@andrews-sc.com





Fax 843-379-2223
 


<Academy Park Watershed Project signed.pdf>





